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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, ) RECEIVE
an lilinois Partnership, Individually as ) CLERK'S OFFICE
beneficiary under trust 3291 of the Chicago ) Fr .
Title and Trust Company dated December 15, ) EB 0 ¢ 2007
1981 and the Chicago Title and Trust Company, ) STATE OF ILLINOIS
as trustee under trust 3291, dated December ) Poliution Conirol Boasrd
15, 1981 )
)
Compilainant, )
)
VS. ) PCB- 07-44
) Citizen's Enforcement
The BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTAFE )  §21(e), §12(a), §12(d)
RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware Corporation }
)
Respondents. )

RESPONSE TO MOTION TO DISMISS

NOW COME the complainants, Indian Creek Development Company, individually
and as the beneficial owner under the Chicago Title and Trust Company trust number
3291 dated December 15, 1981, and the Chicago Title and Trust Company, trustee
under trust number 3291 dated December 15, 1981 (collectively, “Indian Creek™) and
respond to the motion to dismiss and memorandum in support thereof filed by the
Respondent, the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway Company (“BNSF"). In support
thereof, indian Creek states as follows:

INTRODUCTION

Fourteen years after the initial release that subsequently contaminated indian
Creek’s property and despite the ongoing flow of .contaminants onto and under Indian
Creek’s property, the BNSF continues its tap dance. While it is difficult to admire its

motives, one must admire the BNSF's effectiveness. Despite the BNSF's claim, this
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action is not in any way duplicative nor does Indian Creek seek to circumvent the
Consent Order. indian Creek’s property was not known to be impacted by the
contamination at the time the Consent Order was entered nor is Indian Creek a party to
that Consent Order. The BNSF raises a vague claim of circumvention of the Consent
Order by references to specific, but apparently long ignored deadlines in the Consent
Order. | However, simply deafening is the BNSF's silence on what remediation
measures have been submitted to and approved by the Agency regarding ANYTHING
on the Indian Creek or even the BNSF's own property since the entry of the Consent
Order. Fourteen yéars later, NOTHING of the sort has been approved by the Agency.
Yes, the BNSF filed its close-out reports with the Agency. The very same close-out
report in which it FAILED inform the Agency of diesel fuel contamination on the Indian

Creek property despite the BNSF having actual knowledge of that contamination

(Complaint, pages 18, 19, 20). With a more subtle hand but with blatant disregard for
the Consent Order itself, the BNSF now attempts to avoid Board action in an apparent
effort to sidestep its responsibility to remediate the environmental contamination on its
property which has migrated and continues to migrate to and contaminate Indian
Creek's property (the “Indian Creek Property”) (Complaint, paragraphs 11, 17, 29, 37).
Significantly, the Consent Order contemplates other potential actions against the
BNSF before the Board. The BNSF is unable to rely on the facts stipulated in the
Consent Order itself or even file its motion to dismiss. The Consent Order expressly
states that neither the entry of the consent decree nor the stipulated facts therein can be
used for any purpose except to enforce the Consent Order. Accordingly, the BNSF

violates the Consent Order by filing its motion to dismiss and supporting memorandum.
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Still the BNSF claims that this enforcement action is duplicative some fourteen
(14) years after the initial release. Given the ongoing migration of contaminants to the
Indian Creek Property, the allegations in the Complaint and the Boards’ expertise, it is
clear that the facts and circumstances cannot have remained substantially unchanged.
Nonetheless, the BNSF asks the Board to sit back and ignore its ongoing environmental
contamination of Indian Creek's Property based on a Consent Order that aliows
remediation, should the BNSF eventually submit a remediation plan and obtain IEPA
approval. This would be essentially discretionary on IEPA’s part. However, the
Consent Order does not even require remediation of the BNSF's own property (the
“BNSF Property”) which is and is alleged to be the source of the contamination at
issue.”

BACKGROUND ALLEGATIONS

This matter involves a release of diesel fuel on January 20, 1993 on the BNSF
Property which is owned and operated by the BNSF. The Complaint.aﬂeges that
property owned by Indian Creek (“Indian Creek Property”) continues to receive soil and
groundwater contamination flowing from the BNSF Property fourteen (14) years after
the release (Complaint, Paragralphs 11, 17, 24, 37). In 1996, prosecutors filed a civil
enforcement action in Circuit Court and obtained a consent decree against the BNSF
which expressly denies rights of third parties and precludes enforcement by third parties
such as Indian Creek (Consent Order, Pages 2, 30 at Paragraph K). For convenience a
copy of Indian Creek’s complaint including the attached Consent Order and close-out

report(s) is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

1. Fourteen years after the initial release it would appear that the BNSF has elected by defauit not to
remediate the BNSF Property.
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The Complaint alleges that, at the time of the consent decree, contamination was
not known to exist on the Indian Creek Property although the BNSF had an obligation to
investigate the extent of contamination, a requirement which was largely ignored by the
BNSF (Complaint, paragraphs 12, 20). When contamination was discovered on its
property, Indian Creek notified the BNSF, and the BNSF sent representatives to view
the contamination. Amazingly, after contamination was discovered on the Indian Creek
Property the BNSF attempted to close the incident without informing the Agency of the
contamination Vfound on the Indian Creek Property, despite the BNSF's actual
knowledge of said contamination (Complaint, paragraphs 19, 20, 46).

Previous counsel sued the BNSF in Circuit Court but was unable to enforce the

‘Act there and certainly could not enforce the Consent Order. What was left was a mass
of confusing Common Law claims (See Exhibit B, without attachments). The Board
functions in the role of the primary environmental enforcement mechanism under the
Act. Nonetheless, fourteen (14) years after the release, near the midway point of the
second decade after the initial incident the BNSF seeks to deny Indian Creek the right
to enforce the Act before the Board (hereinafter “Remedy”). Indian Creek is not a
citizen filing an enforcement action regarding environmental harm to a stream or other
asset enjoyed by the public in general. Indian Creek seeks to protect property in which
owns. This effort by the BNSF flies in the face of the Consent Order itself as well as the

purpose and intent of the Act and case law.
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ARGUMENT

Apparently, the BNSF sees no problem in depriving a citizen of their Remedy if
the State files a case first without the citizen being a party and a consent decree is
entered into. The BNSF’s view is contrary to both the purpose of the Act and contrary
to the very purpose for which the Board was created. As pointed out, it is contrary to
the Consent Order as well.

One need only carry the BNSF's position to its logical absurdity to see the flaw in
its position. For example, should the Agency mistakenly approve (which it has not) and
the BNSF actually perform remediation on the BNSF Property to a level that is
significantly less clean, than the Indian Creek Property, Indian Creek would have no
remedy under the Act before the Board to protect itself from the continued flow of
contamination onto its property. |If BNSF never ré_médiates its Property as allowed
under Paragraph 3(d) of the Consent Order, BNSF's view is that Indian Creek still has
no Remedy before the Board. Either way, BNSF's view would preclude a Remedy
under the Act before the Board, the agency primarily vested with such authority.

Indeed, the legislature and the drafters of the Act had exactly the opposite intent.
Section 2(c) of the Act provides that the Act shall be liberally construed so as to
effectuate its purposes and the express language of Section 2(a)Xv) of the Act:

The General Assembly finds: ) .

(v) that in order to alleviate the burden on enforcement agencies, to
assure that all interests are given a full hearing, and to increase public
participation in the task of protecting the environment, private as well as

governmental remedies must be provided.
[emphasis added.]
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Professor David P. Currie was both the principal draftsman of the Act and the
first chairman of the Board.? He and the Legislature recognized that "[tlhe complexity of
the [environmental law] field and the need for continuous, informed supervision made it

desirable to establish a separate enforcement agency rather than rely solely upon the

regular prosecutors.” Currie, Enforcement Under the lilinois Pollution Law, 70 NW.U.L.
Rev. 388,444 (1976), emphasis added. Professor Currie explained that once the

legislative decision was made "to_rely principally upon_an administrative rather than a

judicial tribunal to hold hearings and determine whether violations had taken place, it

seemed imperative to create a separate board to do so in order that no single body
would be 'both prosecutor and judge’.” /d., emphasis added. Additionally, and of greater
significance, as underscored by Professor Currie, was the legislative determination to
vest jurisdiction of environmental claims in the Board. Thus, Professor Currie states
that "[m]ore interesting in the long run, although quite orthodox, was the decision to

sidestep the courts as primary tribunals in the first instance." /d., emphasis added.

The BNSF asks the Board to deny not a member of the public in general, but a
property owner, access to the primary tribunal vested with the authority to enforce the Act.
To do so would tumn the Board decision here into one which contravenes the express
purpose of the Act: the interests of innocent property owners?

Professor Currie expiained that the Act contains important multiple and overlapping

enforcement provisidns to guard against less than ideal performance by the various

2 professor Currie’s views have been relied upon by the courts: Landfill, Inc. v. Pollution Control Board,
74 ). 2d 541, 387, N.E. 2d 258 (1978); Monsanto v. Pollution Control Board, 67 lll. 2d 276, 367 N.E. 2d
684 (1977); Wells Manufacturing Company v. Pollution Control Board, 73 lll. 2d 226, 383 N.E. 2d 148
(1978); Mathers v. Pollution Control Board, 107 Il. App. 3d 729, 438 N.E. 2d 213 (1982); Viliage of
Waestern Springs v. Pollution Control Board, 107 lll. App. 3d 864, 438 N.E. 2d 468 (1982). Rockford Drop
Forge Co.. v. Pollution Control Board, 71 IIl. App. 3d 295, 389 N.E. 2d 212 (1979).
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agencies charged with enforcement, calling citizen's complaints “an additional safeguard
against inadequate prosecution.” /d. at 451-452. The drafters of the Act and the
Legislature recognized that the Agency is well intentioned but the Agency in particular
and State government in general is understaffed, overburdened and too frequently led
{o pursue seemingly more immediately pressing issuee. The BNSF'S argument ie in
fact directed at the statutory scheme which does not suit its purposes and with which it
apparently disagrees, as well as with the express language of the Consent Order
precluding the filing of a motion such as the one filed by BNSF. What the BNSF asks of
the Board is no less than circumvention of its own role under the Act.

The definitions in the Board's Procedural Rules (Section 101.202) state:
“Duplicative” means the matter is identical or substantially similar to one brought before
the Board or another forum”. By virtue alone of the many years that have passed, this
matter is not duplicative. Further adding to that are the alleged change in conditions,
the migration of contaminants and the discovery of diesel fuel contaminations on and
under the Indian Creek Property. Accordingly and contrary to BNSF's position, the
violations are not the same as the BNSF claims.

It is not the Consent Order that is being circumvented as the BNSF claims.
BNSF seeks to circumvent the right of Indian Creek'to protect its property from ongoing
and continuing contamination fourteen (14) years after the release.

Importantly, the Consent Order expressly states at page 2 thereof:

STIPULATION OF USE AND AUTHORIZATION

The parties stipulate that this Consent Order is entered into for purposes
of settiement only and that neither the fact that a party has entered into
this Consent Order, nor any of the facts stipulated herein, shall be
used for any purpose in this or any other proceeding except to
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enforce the terms hereof by the parties to this agreement. [(Emphasis
added.]

Accordingly, the Consent Order not only contemplates actions such as this, but
precludes motions to dismiss like the very one filed by the BNSF. On this basis alone,
the BNSF's motion to dismiss must be denied.

The BNSF relies on four (4) cases in support of its position. Lefton Iron and

Metal Co. Inc.. v, Moss-American Corporation, PCB 87-91 1990 WL 263948 (November

29, 1989), Northern lllinois Anglers’ Assn. v. City of Kankakee, PCB 88-183 (January 5,

1989), Sherex Chemical Col, v. lllinois EPA, PCB 91-202 1992 WL 196660 {July 30,

1992)° and the dissenting opinion in State of lllinois v. Estate of Lloyd Weiman and

Cheryl Halbrooks, PCB 93-191 1999 WL 1134752 (December 2, 1999). None of the

cases cited are on point. Indeed, there appears to be no case directly on point with the
one before the Board here. Nonetheless, it is apparent from the cases that do exist that
this matter is not duplicative even ignoring the plain language of the Act and the
Consent Order cited above.

In Lefton the Board held that the Circuit Court was in a much better position to
consider the equitable issues because of the consent decree entered in that case. The
Board stated:

If, for example, the Board were to retain JUI‘ISdICtiOI‘I and find both partles in

violation of the Act, these very same parties would be in Circuit Court arguing the

extent of their liability. In point of fact, they are already there. Lefton, slip at 4.

Here, Indian Creek could not file under the Act in Circuit Court and, subsequent

to motion practice, was left with common iaw actions in an attempt redress the ongoing

® Sherex is not on point but it does show the Board's ability to fashion a remedy where a related
consent decree exists.
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pollution of its property. The same parties are not and were not in Circuit Court in any
action involving the Act. A copy of the latest and subsequently voluntarily dismissed
Circuit Court Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit B. |

Northern liinois Anglers’ is a case involving a group attempting to enforce the Act

to protect a public asset, a waterway, from the discharge of a POTW. The Anglers’ had
no private ownership interest in the waterway. In that case the Board relied on Janson

v. lllinois Pollution Control Board, 69 lll. App.3d 324, 387 N.E.2d. 404 (3" Dist. 1979)

quoting Janson as follows:

Although the two proceedings do have some aspects in common we do
not believe that they are sufficient to classify them as identical causes of
action and thereby require the abatement of one by the other. 387 N.E.2d
at 752. Northern llinpis Anglers’ slip at 2.

In Northern lllinois Anglers’ the Board accepted jurisdiction as to a time period not
covered by the consent decree at issue there saying:

Unlike in Janson, the time span for the alleged pollution activities involving
discharges of BODs and SS as alleged by NIAA in its complaint before the
Board, is covered by the cease and desist portion of the consent decree.
However, as to fecal coliform, the alieged violations took piace
subsequent to the time-span covered by the cease and desist order. The
Board believes that a citizen action seeking to enforce Board regulations
concerming fecal colifom for a time period subsequent to January 1, 1988
is not barred by the circuit court's consent decree. Northem Ilinois

Anglers’, slip at 4.

Indeed, Northern lllinocis Anglers' supports Indian Creek’'s position. Indian

Creek’s property suffers ongoing pollution from a release fourteen (14) years ago.
Involved is a largely ignored Consent Order over a decade old which was entered

before any contamination on the Indian Creek Property was discovered and to which
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Indian Creek was not a party.® For the same reasons the dissenting opinion in State of

litinois v. Estate of Lloyd Weiman and Chery! Halbrooks does not help the BNSF.
Further the fact that this is a dissenting opinion stalting that: |
The citizen suit under Section 31(d) is subject to the duplicitous and
frivolous test for a variety of reasons, among which are to insure that the
Attorney General and the "private attorney general® do not duplicate
efforts and that a respondent is not required to defend against a claim
.more than once. Based on Section 31(d), when the two complaints are
identical, that filed by the private citizen can and should be dismissed as
duplicitous..
The facts are anything but identical as the BNSF merely attempts to utilize a Consent
Order to avoid an obligation that exists regardless of the Consent Order, one with which
it apparently it disagrees and, for various reasons, has been able to avoid for some
fourteen (14) years from the original release. The overly broad position advocated by
the BNSF wou'd make a mockery of the Act and the role of the Board in the Minois
system as pointed out by Professor Currie.

The rule is that similar violations occurring at different times are not duplicative,

particularly where the complainant was not a party to the Circuit Court consent decree.

Dettlaff v. Edward Boado and EPB Services, Inc., PCB 92-26, 1992 WL 81500 (March

26, 1992), See also: Fredette v. Village of Beecher, PCB 89-61, 1990 WL 275962

(January 24, 1990), Janson v. llingis Pollution Control Board, Supra, Winnetkans

Interested in Protecting the Environment v lllinois Pollution Control Board', 55 II. App.3d

475, 370 N.E.2d 1176 (1% Dist. 1977).
There is no real conflict with the Consent Order, although BNSF attempts to

create one’. The Consent decree gives the Agency broad discretion. The Board is

%I Lefton, the Board relied on Northern lllinois Anglers’. Accordingly, Lefton does not aid the BNSF’s
position.

Printed on Recycled Paper 10



skilled in fashioning remedies where Consent Orders exist and the Board can take the
Consent Order into consideration when it fashions the appropriate relief just as it did in

Fredette. Fredette, slip at 6.

Accordingly, the Board should deny the BNSF’s motion to dismiss because, for
among the following reasons:

o The Consent Order expressly states that neither the entry of the consent
decree nor the stipulated facts therein can be used for any purpose except
to enforce the Consent Order. The Order thus contempiates additional
actions and places the BNSF's motion at odds with the Consent Order
itself.

e Section 2 of the Act requires that the Act shall be liberally construed and
that all interests are given a full hearing to increase public participation
in the task of protecting the environment, and that private as well as
governmental remedies must be provided.

« Of necessity, conditions have changed in the fourteen (14) years since the
original release and more than a decade since the entry of the Consent
Order.

e Indian Creek's property was not known to be impacted by the
contamination at the time the Consent Order was entered.

o The only area mentioned in the Consent Order other than that on the
BNSF Property is a drainage ditch which collects surface water and
discharges into Indian Creek, a tributary of the Fox River.

e Indian Creek was not a party to the Consent Order and is unable to
enforce it.

e BNSF is silent on what remediation measures have been submitted to
and approved by the Agency regarding ANYTHING on the Indian Creek or
the BNSF Property since the Consent Order was entered because
fourteen years later, NOTHING of the sort has been approved by the
Agency.

® The Agency can be joined as Indian Creek has requested in Paragraph 6 of it's payer for relief and
Indian Creek has further prayed for a No Further Remediation Letter to be issued which necessarily
requires IEPA’s participation by way of the Site Remediation Program. Prosecutors willing to intervene in
this matter can be allowed to do so.
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WHEREFORE, Complainants, Indian Creek, pray that the. Board find that this

matter is not identical or substantially similar to one brought in the Consent Order and

that the Board deny the Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss.

GLENN C. SECHEN

Schain, Burney, Ross & Citron, Ltd.
222 North LaSalle St., #1910
Chicago, IL 60601

312-332-0200

312-332-4514 telefax
gsechen@schainlaw.com

Respectfully Submitted,
Indian Creek Development Company and

Chicago Land Trust Company t/u/t 3291, dated
December 15, 1981

By: _éfeam 6» .S’ecéen

FAGCSUndian Creek Development JB Industries\PCB Enforcemant Action\Pleadings, DraftiResponse to M Dismiss Draft 5.doc
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, )
an Winois Partnership, Individually as }
beneficiary under trust 3291 of the Chicago )
Titie and Trust Company dated December 15, )

1981 and the Chicago Title and Trust Company, ) RCE CEIv
as trustee under trust 3291, dated December ) LERK'S OFFIEFD
15, 1981 ; e . -
Complainant, STATE ()
P ; Poliution Cg,{,‘;gj’;gra
vs. | pca. 1Y e
) Citizen's Enforcement
The BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTAFE ) §21(e), §12(a), §12(d)
RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware Corporation }
)
Respondents. )

COMPLAINT

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 21{e) OF THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL
‘ PROTECTION ACT (4151LCS 5/21{e)) .

NOW COME the complainants, Indian Creek Development Company, individually
and as the beneficiary owner under the Chicago Title and Trust Company trust number
3291 dated December 15, 1981 and the Chicago Title and Trust Company, trustee
under trust number 3291 dated December 15, 1981 (collectively, “Indian Creek”) and in
support of its complaint against the Respondent, th_e B_urlington Northern Santa Fe
Railway Company (“BNSF") Indian Creek states as follows:

1. At all times relevant hereto, complainant, Indian Creek Development
Company, an lilinois Partnership, was the beneficial owner, through the aforesaid
Chicago Title and Trust Company Vult 3291, of certain real property in Kane County.

ilinois commonly known as 1500 Dearborn Avenue, Aurora, Illinois 60505 and including
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property index numbers: 15-13-376-001; 15-14-479-005, 15-14-479-006, 15-14-479-
009, and 15-14-479-010; 15-23-227-026 and 15-23-227-028; 15-24-101-004; 15-24-
102-001, 15-24-102-008, 15-24-102-009 and 15-24-102-010; 15-24-103-002 and 15-24-
103-003. (collectively the "Premises”).

2, At all times relevant hereto, respondent, BNSF, a Delaware corporation,
owned real property adjacent to the Premises which contained railroad tracks upon
which BNSF operated a railroad (“BNSF Property”).

3. On or about January 20, 1993 there occurred a release through the
discharging, depositing, dumping, leaking and spilling of thousands of galions of diesel
fuel as a result of the industrial or commercial railroad operations conducted on the
BNSF Property.

4, The direction pf groundwater flow is from the BNSF Property to the
Premises and Indian C_reek, which runs through the Premises.

5. Subsequent to the release and pursuant to the Act, including Sections
12(a) and 12(d), the Attorney General and State's Attorney of Kane County filed an‘
enforcement action against the BNSF and others in Circuit Court bearing case number
CH KA 95 0527.

6. On or about February 5, 1996, a consent decree (hereinafter, “Consent
Decree”) was entered in the Kane County enforcement action regarding the release of
diesel fuel on the BNSF Property. A copy of that Consent Decree is attached hereto as

Exhibit A,
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7. Among other things, the Consent Decree required the BNSF to prevent
further migration of the diesel fuel contamination and to determine the extent to which
the soil and groundwater were impacted both on and off of the BNSF Property.

8. Pursuant to specific deadlines, the Consent Decree requfred the BNSF to
submit a work plan to, and obtain the.approvai of, the Hllinois Environmental Protection
Agency (“Agency”), and it also required that the BNSF notify the State’s Aftorney,
AttorneylGeneraI and IEPA in writing of the action(s) taken. See generally Exhibit A.

9, Thereafter, the' BNSF was, pursuant to fhe Consent Decree, required to
file a close-out report which, at a minimum, was to include a summary of all sampling
and other data required to be coliected, as well as a certification by an lllinois
Registered Professional Engineer that the requirements of the Consent Decree had
been met, 7 7

10. The BNSF's initial efforts to remediate the affected areas, limit the
migration of free product, and recover released diesel fuel were primarily focused on
areas distanced from the Premises. Moreover, these efforts were largely unsuccessful,
resulting in the recovery of only a small amount of the diesel fuel that was actually
released.

11.  Since 1993, the diesel fuel has remained abandoned on and under the
BNSF Property and thereafter has migrated, and continues to migrate, from the BNSF
Property onto and under the Premises.

12.  On or about late October or November, 2000, Indian Creek excavated a

small portion of a building floor on the Premises in order to install a piece of equipment
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there. The area of the excavation of the Premises was located near the boundaries of
the BNSF Property.

13.  During the excavation, an odor was noted and free produdt and apﬁaréntly
contaminated soil and groundwater were observed. Subsequently, samples 6f the free
product were taken from the excavated part of the Premises, and lab analysis identified
the free product as diesel fuel.

14. Indian Creek notified BNSF of the excavation on the Premises, and the
attendant odor, and the BNSF responded by removing some of the contaminated soil
from the excavation on the Premises.

15. The BNSF has a duty to prevent the migration to and contamination of the
soil and groundwater on and under the Premises, but despite the obligations imposed
by law and the Consent Decree, the BNSF has compiete!y failed to take sufficient ste_ps
to halt the migration of the diesel fuel contamination onto the soil and groundwater on
and under the Premises.

16.  In contravention of its duty, the BNSF did little to remediate the affected
areas, recover released diesel fuel, limit the migration of the diesel fuel contamination,
adequately sample to determine the extent of co_ptamination, and to monitor the
migration of the diesel fuel contaminants from the BNSF Property.

17.  Diesel fuel contamination on the BNSF Property continues to migrate onto
the Premises, further contaminating the soil and groundwater located on and under the
Premises on an ongoing basis. |

18.  Subsequent to the discovery of diesel fuel contamination on the

Premises, without having performed any remediation of the premises and without prior
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notification to Indian Creek, the BNSF requested Agency closure of the incident
pursuant to the Consent Decree without notifying the Agency of thé contamination that
Indian Creek found on the Premises,

19.  The BNSF failed to disclose the contamination of the Premises to the
Agency despite indian Creek's notification to the BNSF regarding the contamination it
found on and under the Premises when it excavated, despite the BNSF's removal of
contaminated soil from the excavation on the Premises, despite the observations of
BNSF’s agents, servants, and employees when it removed the contaminated soil, and
despite the fact that laboratory analysis of samples taken from the excavations of the
Premises revealed that the contamination was diesel fuel. A copy of the BNSF's
request for closure dated April 2, 2001 with a prior request for closure dated November
6, 1998 attached theretc_), atta‘ched to this petition as Exhibit B.

20. The spread of diesel fuel contamination to portions of the BNSF property
not initially impacted and eventually to the Premises was willful, as is amply
demonstrated by the BNSF's attempt to close the incident under the Consent Decree
without informing the Agency of the diesel fuel contamination on and under the
Premises.

21.  The Agency is working to fulfill its role under the Consent Decree and to
obtain the remediation by the BNSF.

22. The diesel fuel contamination in the groundwater under both the BNSF
Property and under the Premises constitutes' Water Pollution within .the meaning of
Section 3.545 of the Environmental Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5 et. seq. (“the Act’), as it

is a nuisance, renders such groundwater harmful or detrimental or injurious to public
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health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricuitural,
recreational, or other legitimate uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other
aquatic life.

23.  This case is a refiling of Kane County case number 04 L 607 filed on or
about December 7, 2004, |

24. This case, like the Kane County case, concerns contamination that has
migrated to and continues to migrate onto the Prémises from the BNSF Property. The
Kane County case was voluntarily dismissed on November 21, 2006. A copy of the
order of dismissal is attached as Exhibit C.

COUNT |
Section 12(a) Violation

25. Paragraphs 1-24 are incorporated by reference as paragraph 25 hereof.

26.  Seclion 12(a) of the Act provides that no person shail.

Cause or threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminants into the
environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause water pollution
in Illinois, either alone or in combination with matter from other sources, or
so as to violale regulations or standards adopted by the Poliution Control
Board under this Act.

27.  Section 3.550 of the Act defines "Waters™ as all accumulations of water,
surface and underground, natural, and arificial, public and private, or parts thereof,
which are wholly or partially within, flow through, or border upon this State.

28.  Accordingly, the groundwater under the Premises and that under the
BNSF Property are Waters within the meaning of Section 3.550 of the Act.

29.  Section 3.165 of the Act (415 ILCS 5/3.165) defines "Contaminant” as any

solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form of energy, from whatever source.
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| 30. The diese! fuel which was released is a Contaminant within the meaning
of Section 3.165 of the Act.

31, Section 3.545 of the Act defines "Water Pollution™ as such alteration of the
physical, thermal, chemica!., biological or radioactive‘properties of any waters of the
State, or such discharge of any céntaminant into any waters olf the State, as will or is
likely fo create a nuisance or render such waters harmful or detrimenta! or injurious to
public health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural,
recreational, or other legitimate uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other
aquatic life. 415 ILCS 5/3.545.

32. The General Assembly has expressly found “that pollution of the waters of
this State constitutes a menace to public health and welfare, creates public nuisances,
is harmful to wildlife, fish, and aquatic life, impairs domestic, agricultural, industrial,
recreational, and other legitimate beneficial uses of water, depresses property values,
and offends the senses”. 415 ILCS 5/11(a).

33. The BNSF caused and allowed the discharge of diesel fue! contaminants
on the BNSF Property in 1993, threatened, caused and aliowed the discharge of said
diesel fuel contaminants through migration to other parts of the BNSF Property, and
threatened and eventually caused and allowed the ongoing discharge of contaminants
onto the so0il and into the groundwater on and under the Premises so as to cause and
tend to cause water pollution in violation of Section 12(a} of the Act.

34, Because of the ongoing migration of the diesel contamination and its

continued discharge onto and under the Premises, the violation of Section 12(a) of the
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Act is ongoing and will continue unless and until abated by order of the Pollution Control

Board.

WHEREFORE, Complainants, pray that the Board grant the following relief in

favor of indian Creek and against the BNSF:

A. Find the BNSF in violation of Section 12(a) of the Act,

B. Direct the BNSF to cease and desist from further violations of Section
12(a) of the Act;
C. Mandate and direct the abatement of the continuing violation of Section

12(a) of the Act at the expense of the BNSF as follows:

iil.

Printed on Recycled Paper

Mandate the remediation of the BNSF Property in such a manner
as to stop the ongoing contamination of the Premises; and

Mandate that the Premises be remediated to achjeve the removal
of all contamination on the Premises that flowed from the BNSF
Property;

Mandate, to the extent technically feasible, that all remediation be
performed to background levels and that, in no event, remediation
be performed to a level less than the applicable residential
standards contained in the Tiered Approach to Corrective Action
Objectives, 35 Il. Admn. Code 742; and

Mandate that the remediation of the Premises occurs pursuant to
the Agency's Site Remediation Program and that a No Further

Remediation Letter be obtained;



D. Mandate that the Agency as well as the Parties hereto and their
consultants and attorneyé'be permitted to monitor the remediation of the
BNSF Property and the Premises, and allow them to have access to all
reports and laboratory analyses related in any way to the BNSF Property
and the contamination thereon;

E. Order that any and all remediation be conducted by consultants and
engineers selected by either Indian Creek or the Board due 1o the BNSF's
failure to take adequate steps over more than 13 years to prevent to
migration of the contamination to other properties, and based on the
BNSF's attempt to obtain closure of the incident without notification to
indian Creek and without informing the Agency of the contamination that it
knew existed on and under the Premises;

F. Order that any and all remediation that is conducted be conducted by
utilizing methods selected by either Indian Creek or the Board,

G. That the Board request the Agency to investigate the facts and violations
set forth herein pursuant to Section 30 of the Act and thereafter name the
Agency as a parly in interest, pursuant to 35 1ll. Adm. Code 101.404 and
103.202, to coordinate the Agency's duties and efforts pursuant to the
Consent Decree, Exhibit B;

H. Mandate that the BNSF reimburse Indian Creek for its all of its costs and
expenses (including the fees of consultants and experts as well as the
cost of sampling and laboratory analysis) related to the contamination,

including but not limited to:
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i The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,
future investigation of the contamination on the Premises;
ii. The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,
future sampling and monitoring of the contamination on the
Premises, its migration from the BNSF Property to the
Premises; AND
R Grant such other and further relief as the IMinocis Pollution Control Board

deems appropriate.

COUNT Il
Section 12{d) Violation
35. Paragraphs 1 to 34 are incorporated by reference as paragraph 35 hereot.
36.  Section 12(d) of the Act provides that no person shall;

Deposit any contaminants upon the land in such a place and manner so
as to create a water pollution hazard.

37. The BNSF caused and allowed the deposit of diesel fuel contaminants on
the BNSF Property in 1993. Subsequently, the BNSF caused and allowed the
deposited contaminants to move, migrate, and deposit onto other portions of the BNSF
Property, and eventually to the Premises.

38.  Accordingly, the BNSF's actions have created a water poliution hazard on
both the BNSF Property and the Premises in violation of Section 12(d) of the Act.

30. Because of the ongoing migration of the diesel contamination onto the
Premises, the violation of Section 12(d) of the Act is ongoing and will continue unless

and until abated by order of the Pollution Control Board.
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WHEREFORE, Complainants, pray that the Board grant the following relief

against the BNSF:

A. Find the BNSF in violation of Section 12(d) of the Act;

B. Direct the BNSF to cease and desist from further violations of Section
12(d) of the Act;
C. Mandate and direct the abatement the continuing violation of Section

12(d) of the Act at the expense of the BNSF as follows:

il

Mandate the remediation of the BNSF Property in such a manner
as to stop the ongoing contamination of the Premises;

Mandate the Premises be remediated causing the removai of all
contamination on the Premises which flowed from the BNSF
Property,

Mandate, to the extent technically feasible, that all remediation be
performed 1o background levels and, in no event, that the
remediation be performed to a level less than applicable residential
standards contained in the Tiered Approach to Corrective Action
Objectives, 35 lIt. Admn. Code 742,

Mandate that the remediation of the Premises occur pursuant o the
Agency's Site Remediation Program and that a No Further

Remediation Letter be obtained;

D. Mandate that the Agency as well as the Parties hereto and their

consultants and attorneys be permitted to monitor the remediation of the

BNSF Property and the Premises, and allow them to have access to all

Printed on Recycted Paper

11



reports and laboratory analysis related in any way to the BNSF Property
and the contamination thereon; |

E. Order that any and all remediation be conducted by consultants and
engineers selected by either indian Creek or the Board due to the BNSF's
failure to take adequate steps over more than 13 years to prevent to
migration of the contamination to other properties, and based on the
BNSF's attempt to obtain closure of the incident without notification to
Indian Creek and without informing the Agency of the contamination that it
knew existed on and under the Prernises;

F. Order that any and all remediation that is conducted be conducted by
utilizing methods selected by either Indian Creek or the Board;

G. That the Board request the Agency to investigate the facts and violations
set forth herein pursuant to Section 30 of the Act and thereafter name the
Agency as a parly in interest, pursuant to 35 [Il. Adm. Code 101.404 and
103.202, to coordinate the Agency's duties and efforts pursuant to the
Consent Decree, Exhibit B.

H. Mandate that the BNSF reimburse Indian Creek for its all of its costs and
expenses (including but not limited to the fees of consultants and experts
as well as the cost of sampling and laboratory énalysis) related to the
contamination including but not limited to:

i. The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,

future investigation,
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40,

41.

42,

ii. The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,
future sampling and otherwise monitoring the contamination
on the Premises and the migration of contamination on the
BNSF Property;

iif. such costs and expenses include but are not limited to the
fees of consultants and experts as well as the cost of
sampling and laboratory analysis; AND

Grant such other and further relief as the lilinois Pollution Control Board
may deem appropriate.

COUNT Nl
Section 21(e) Violation

Paragraphs 1 to 38 are incorporated by reference as paragraph 39 hereof.
Section 21 (e) of the Act provides that:

No person shall. . .[dJispose, treat, store or abandon any waste, or
transport any waste into this State for disposal, treatment, storage or
abandonment, except at a site or facility which meets the requirements of
this Act and of regulations and standards thereunder.

Section 3.535 of the Act defines "Waste" as, inter alia, any "discarded

material" resulting from industrial or commercial operations. 415 ILCS 5/3.535.

43.

The diesel fuel and contaminated media on and under the BNSF Property

that the BNSF has abandoned and disposed of is Waste under the Act.

44.

Section 3.185 of the Act defines "Disposal” as the discharge, deposit,

injection, dumping, spilling, leaking or placing of any waste or hazardous waste into or

on any land or water or into any well so that such waste or hazardous waste may enter
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the environment or be emitted into the air or discharged into any waters, inciuding
groundwater. 415 ILCS 5/3.185.

45, By allowing the diese! fuel spilled in 1993 to remain on and under the
BNSF Property and the Premises to mix with soil and groundwater media, the BNSF
has abandoned and disposed of said diese! fuel and diesel fuel contaminants.

46, The BNSF’'s abandonment and disposal of the diesel fuel and diese! fuel
contaminated media under the BNSF Property and the Premises are knowing violations
of the Act, as aptly demonstrated by the BNSF’s attempt to close the incident pursuant
to the Consent Decree without informing the Agency of the diesel fuel contamination on
and under the Premises — contamination of which the BNSF was fully aware,

47. Neither the BNSF Property nor the Premises are permitted by the Agency
1o be waste disposal sites or facilities and for that reason and otherwise they do not
meet the requirements of a waste disposal site or facility under the Act or under
applicable Illinois Pollution Control Board regulations.

48. Such violation of Section 21(e) of the Act is ongoing and will continue
uniess and until abated by order of the Pollution Control Board.

WHEREFORE, Complainants, pray that the Board grant the following relief
against the BNSF:

A. Find the BNSF in violation of Section 21(e) of the Act,

B. Direct the BNSF to cease and desist from further violations of Section

21(e) of the Act;
C. Mandate and direct the abatement the continuing violation of Section

21(e) of the Act at the expense of the BNSF as follows:
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Mandate the remediation of the BNSF Property in such a manner
as to stop the ongoing contamination of the Premises;

Mandate the Premises be remediated causing the removal of all
contamination on the Premises which flowed from the BNSF
Property:

Mandate, to the extent technically feasible, that all remediation be
performed to background levels and, in no event, that the
remediation be performed to a level less than applicable residential
standards contained in the Tiered Approach to Corrective Action
Objectives, 35 IIl. Admn. Code 742,

Mandate that the remediation of the Premises occur pursuant to the
Agency's Site Remediation Program and that a No Further

Remediation Letter be obtained;

D. Mandate that the Agency as well as the Parties hereto and their

consultants and attorneys be permitted to monitor the remediation of the

BNSF Property and the Premises, and allow them to have access 1o all

reports and laboratory analysis related in any way to the BNSF Property

and the contamination thereon;

E. Order that any and all remediation be conducted by consultants and

engineers selected by either Indian Creek or the Board due to the BNSF's

failure to take adequate steps over more than 13 years to prevent to

migration of the contamination to other properties, and based on the

BNSF's attempt to obtain closure of the incident without notification to
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Indian Creek and without informing the Agency of the contamination that it
knew existed on and under the Premises;,

F. Order that any and all remediation that is conducted be conducted by
utilizing methods selected by either Indian Creek or the Board;

G. That the Board request the Agency to investigate the facts and violations
set forth herein pursuant to Section 30 of the Act and thereafter name the
Agency as a party in interest, pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 101.404 and
103.202, to coordinate the Agency’s duties and efforts pursuant to the
Consent Decree, Exhibit B.

H. Mandate that the BNSF reimburse Indian Creek for its all of its costs and
expenses (including but not limited to the fees of consultants and experts
as well as the cost of sampling and laboratory analysis) related to the
contamination including but not limited to:

iv. The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,
future investigation,

V. The costs of past and, to the extent reasonably necessary,
future sampling and otherwise monitoring the contamination
on the Premises and the migration of contamination on the
BNSF Property;

vi. such costs and expenses include but are not limited to the
fees of consultants and experts as well as the cost of

sampling and laboratory analysis; AND
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R Grant such other and further relief as the lllinois Pollution Control Board

may deem appropriate.

Respectfully Submitted,

Indian Creek Development Company and
Chicago Land Trust Company t/u/t 3291,
dated December 15, 1981

GLENN C. SECHEN

JAMES R. GRIFFIN

M. HOPE WHITFIELD

Schain, Burney, Ross & Citron, Ltd.
222 North LaSalle St., #1910 '
Chicago, IL 60601

312-332-0200

312-332-4514 telefax

gsechen@schainlaw.com

FAGCS\Indian Creek Development JB Industries\PCB Enforcement Action\Pleadings, Drafindian Creek PCB Complaint-FNL doc

Prinied on Recycled Paper 17



D - e .
7 ').I“’./.‘j,.f" /(/1/’ ;/ o .")—/';-77

RN
Do

M OTHR CIRCLIT COURT FUR TYE SIYTEENTH JIMICIAL CIRCUIT
KANE COUMNTY, ILLINOIS
CHANCEPY DIVISION

PFOPLE CF THE STATE OF ILLINCIS,

ex r=]. JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney

Gencral of the State of Illinois
DAVID B. AKEMANN,

and ex rel.
Statre's Attorney cf Kane

)
!
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
}

Cocunty,
Plaintiff,
vs. No. CH KA 95 0527

BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD

COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, o

SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION TN e

COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, Clrk of the Cbnﬁﬁ
“Jﬂcthunw,ufoun

;
)
)
and subsidiary of SOUTHERN )
PACIFIC RAIL CORPORATION, )
)
)
)
)
)
).

FEB O . 1996

-
. - ‘Jklw

a Delaware corporation, and
SPCSL CORP., a Delaware corporation
and subsidiary of SOUTHERN PACIFIC
TRANSPORTATION COMPANY,

Defendants.

plaintiff, the PECPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ex rel. JAMES
E. RYAN, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, ex rel. DAVID R.
AKEMANN, State's Attorney of Kane County, Illinoig, and Defendanrs,
BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD COMPANY, a Delaware corporation,

SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, and

subsidiary of SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAIL CORPORATION, a Delaware
and SPCSL CORP., a Déldware corgoration and subsidiary

corporation,
of SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, having agreed to the
do

makiﬁg of this stipulation and the entry of this Consent Order,

herely stipulate and aéree ag follows:



I.
STIPULATION OF USE AND AUTHORIZATION

The narties stipulate that this Consent Order is entered Into
for purposes of settlement cily and that neither the fact thac a
party has entered into this Consent Order, nor any of the facts
stipulated herein, shall be used for any purpose in this or any

other proceeding except to enforce the terms hereof by the pafties
Further, this Consent Order or the performance

to this agreement.
hereunder by the defendants BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD COMPANY, a

Delaware corporation, SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, a
Delaware corporation, and subsidiary of SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAIL

CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, and SPCSL CdRP., a Delaware
corporation and subsidiary of SOUTHERN PACIFIC TRANSPORTATION

COMPANY, shall not create ény right on behalf of‘ény person or

entity not a party hereto. Notwithstanding the previous sentences,
this Consent Order may be used in any future enforcement action as
evidence of a past adjudication of violation of the Illinois

Environmental Protection Act ("Act®) for. purposes of Section 42 (h)

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(h) (1994).
The undersigned representativé for each party certifies that
he/she is fully authorized by the party who he/she represents to

enter into the terms and conditions of this Consent Order and to

legally bind the party he/she represents to the Consent Order.



A Parties

The Attorney General of the State of Illinois brings this

1.
action on his own motion as well as at the request of the Illinois

Environmental Protection Agency ("Agency"), and the State's Attorney
of Kane County, Illinois, brings this actjon on his own motibn,

pursuant to the statutory authority vested in them under Section 42

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42 (1394).
The Agency is5 an agency of the State of Illinois created

2.
pursuant to Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS s/4 (1994), and charged,

inter alfa, with the duty of enforcing the Act.
At all times relevant to this Consent Crder, Burlington

3 " .
Northern Railroad Company ("Burlington™}, is a Delaware corporation

authorized to do business in Illinois since February 27, 1970, and

is engaged in the business of providing rail transportation

services,
At all times relevant to this Consent Order, Southern

4.
PaciFic Rail Corporation (“SPRC"), is a Delaware rail holding
SPRC

corporation and is not authorized to do business in Illinois.

is the parent company of Southern Pacific Transportation Company,

owning 100% of its capital stock.
5. At all times relevant to this Consent. Order, Scuthern

!
pacific Transpertation Company, a Delaware
corporation and subsidiary of Southern Pacific Rail Corporation, is

Southerih Pacific is in the

{"Southern Pacific"},

‘the parent company of SPCSL Corp.
business of providing railroad freight transportation services and

provides such services in Illincis through ics wholly-owned

3



subsidiary SPCSL. Southern Pacific itself is not authorized to do
on information and belief Southern Pacific

business in Illinois.
conducts business in Illinois through its whelly owned subsidiary

SPCSL Corp.
At all times ra=levant to this Consent Order, SPCSL Corp.

6.
("sSpCSL") was and is a Delaware corporation qualified t£o do business

in Illinois on November 3, 1989. SPCSL is a wholly-own subsidiary
of Southern Pacific and is in the business of providing rail

transportation services in Illinnis.
Defendants Southern Pacific, SPERC and SPCSL, shall

7.
hereinafter be referred to collectively as Southern Pacific.
i

B. Site Description
At all times relevant to this Consent Order, the site is

t of the Village of Aurora

The site

1.
located on the Burlington rail lines eas
near the community of Eola, Aurcra, Kane County, Illinois.

consists of five east-west rail tracks and spurs with a warehouse

forming its southern boundary and a smaller bullding forming the

northern boundary.
OF the five east west rail tracks, three are mainline

2.
The three mainline

tracks and the other two are siding tracks.
Illinois gateway.

tracks provide Burlington access into the Chicagog,
Illinois and extend

The three mainline tracks originate in Chicago,
Missouril and also to

west to Galesburg, Illinois, and Kansas City,
t
The mainline tracks

gt. Paul, Minnesota and to Seattle, Washington:
are utilized to provide through freight rail gservice, Amtrak service
and Metra computer service. In exceas of 155 trains per 24 hour
period operate nver the rhres mainline tracks. Thes two siding

ge of cars aal

naed aa passing tracks and Frr thes atora

tracks arn
q



isr in tralin mcvement cver the

: trains. They are algo used Lo a

! thrae mainline tracks.
3. Located parallel to the site is5 & drainage ditch.

Surface runoff is collected b7 a storm sewer that discharges into

Indian Creek which is a tributary of the Fox River
Burlington

4. At all times relevant to this Consent Order,
owns, operates and is in contrcl of the site The movement of
trains, cars and engines over and along its tracks are subject to

Burlington's direction and control
At all times relevant to this Consent Order, pursuant to

5.
a Trackage Rights Agreement entered into by and between Burlington

and Southern Pacific, Southern Pacific uses the site for the conduct

of its rail services.

C_ 1 cr i"V' 1 ;- . . . ) . . . P
415 ILCS 5/12(a) (1994},

1. Section 12fa) of the Act,

provides as follows:

No person shall:
a. Cauge or threaten or allow the discharge of any
contaminants igto the environment in any State so as

to cause or tend to cause water pollution in
either alone or in combination with matter

Illinois,
from other sources, or so as to violate regulatioens
or gtandards adopted by the Pellution Control Board

under this Act;
415 ILCS S5/12{(d} (1994},

2. Section 12(d) of the Act,

provides as follows:,
© !

N No person shall:
ontaminants upon land in such place and
o create a water pollution hazard;

d. Deposit any c
1993, due to errors

manner so 4s o

pPlaintiff alleges that on January 20

3.
on the part of certain Burlington emplcoyees, including, its



dispatcher, train esngineer and conductor, a train owned snd operated
by Burlington and traveling westhound over the site, cnllided head-

on with a train owned and operated by Scuthern Pacific which was

Burlington denies this allegation.

traveling eastbound.
Lhree

when the trains collided,

4. Cn January 20, 1593,

diesel fuel tanks with combined fuel capacity of 10,800 gallons of

releasing approximately 5,B00-6,800 gallons of

fuel, ruptured,
diesel fuel onto the grourd and into a nearby creek causing an

"oily" sheen to appear on the waters in- the nearby ditch and cresk.

To date, 208 gallons of the 5,800-6,800 gallons of

5.
diesel fuel spilled at the site have been recovered via the recovery

Burlington as the owner and operator of

trench system installed.
the site has not fully remediated the diesel fuel contaminated scil

ak the site.
IXI.

: APPLICABILITY
This Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upoh the State
Burlington and

or plaintiff, Burlington and Southern Pacific.

Southern Pacific shall not raise as a defense ta any action to
enforce this Consent Order, the failure of any of its officers,
agents, servants or émployees to take such action as shall be
required to comply with the provisions of thig Consent Order.
. Iv.
I .
QQMELIBHQE_HIIH,QIBEE_LAHEABHQ_EBQHLAIIQHE f
This Consent Order in no way affects the respongibilities of

Burlington and Southern pacific to comply with any other federal,
including but not limited to the Act,

gtate or local regulations,
and the Board Rules and Regulatidns, 35 rl1l. Adm. Code Subtitles A
6



chrough H.
V.

VENUE
The parties agree that the venue of any acticn commenced in
rireuit Court for the purpose of interpretation and enforcement of

the terms and conditions of this Consent Order shall be in Kane

County.

VI,

SEVERABILITY

It is the intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of
this Consent Order shall be severable, and should any provisions be

declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be inconsistent

with state or federal law, and therefore unenforceable, the

remaining clauses shall remain in full force and effect. In the
event that any provision of this Consent Order and plans implemented
herein shall be declared inconsistent with the provisions of the

the provisions of the Act shall

Act, 415 ILCS, 5/1 et seq. (1994},

be controlling.
VII.

PINAL JUDGMENT ORDER
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and upon the

gensent of the parties heréto to perférm the activities to be
ordered by the court, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED ‘AND DECREED :

A. Jurisdiction
This court has jurisdiction of the subject matter herein and of

the parties consenting hereto pursuant to the Act.
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The objective of this Censent Crder is to have an enfarceable

order which will ensure the implementation cf kthe terms herecf, ro
obtain remediation cE the site as is economically reasonable and

technclogically feasible, to assure the protection of public health,

and ceompliance with the Act,

safety, welfare and the environment,

Board's Water Pollution Regulations,
any applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

the Federal Clean Water Act and

E

C.

Burlington and Southern Pacific shall together
pay a penalty of $85,000.00 into the Illinois
Environmental Protection Trust Fund. Such

penalty amount shall be paid within thirty (30)

days of the date of this order. This penalty

shall be paid by check to the Treasurer of the

state of Illinois for deposit in the

Environmental Protection Trust Fund and

dalivered to:
Illinois Environmental Protection Adency

Fiscal Services Division
2200 Churchill Réad

P.O. Box 19276
springfield, IL 62794-9276

1
‘The name and number of the case, the Agency's

incident number that was assigned to this
release and Burlington's and Southern Pacific's

Federal Employer's Identification Number



1

i.

{"FEIN") shall appear In the face of the check.
Durlington's FREIN ig 41-6034000. Seouvthern

Pacific's FEIN is 94-6C0i23. The Agency's

incident numbher 1s 9$30180.

Burlington and Southern Pacific are jointly and
severally liable for the $85.000.00 civil

penalty required in Section VII.C.l1.a.i.

herein.

, ) penalti

In the event Burlington fails to satisfy any
requirement or comply with any provision of
this Consent Order, or Ffails tc satisfy any
requirement of any plaintiff-apprcved work

plan or schedule 'developed pursuant to this

Consent Order, Burlington shall pay to the

plaintiff for payment into the Illinois
Environmental Protecticon Trust Fund,
stipulated peénalties in the amount of $500.00
per day of noncompliance until such time as
compliance is achieved. .

All penalties owed the plaintiff under this
gubgection VII.C.1.b. shall be payable within

thirty (30 days of the date Burlirgton knows

or gshould have known of its noncompliance

‘with any provision of the Consent Order.

All péhalties ghall begin to accrue on the
day that complete performance ig due and

continue to accrue through the final day of

9



correcrion of rhe non-coampliance.

all stipulated penalties shall he paid by

iv.

<heck made payable to rthe Treasurer of the
State of Illinois for deposgit in the
Environmental Protectlion Trust Fund and
delivered to:
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
Fiscal Services Division
2200 Churchill Road
P.0O. Box 19276
Springfield, Illinois 62754-3276
The name and number of the case and
Burlington's Federal Employer's
Identification Number ("FEIN") shall appear
cn the face of the check.

V. The'stipblateﬁ penalties shall be enforceable

by the plaintiff and shall be in addition ta
: and shall not breclude the use of any other
remedies or sanctions arising from

Burlington's failure to comply with the

Consent Order.

c. Past Responge Cosis

within thirty (30) days of entry of the Consent Order,

Burlington ghall pay the amount of $1,430.55 in satisfaction of

claim{s) the plaintiff may have for all investigation, respense,
and oversiéht costs that occurred prior to the entry of this
Consent Oxder. The $1,430.55 payment requiféd hereiﬁ shall he
paid to the Treasurer of rhe State of Illinois designaﬁed to the

Hazardous Waste Fund with the Emexgency Oversight number, 930190

on the face of the check, and submitted to:

10



Illinois Environmental Protection 2Zgency

Fiscal Services Division
2200 churchill Road

P.O, Box 18275
Springfield, IL 62794-927%

d. Future Response Costs

Subject to Section F below, Burlington shall reimburse

the Agency for any response and pversight cost incurred
The Agency agrees

subsequent to the entry of this Consent Order.
to submit to Burlington, on a quarterly or annual basis at its

discretion, a detailed accounting that shall include a summary of
response and oversight activities performed, a detailed summary

of all expenses claimed and a statement that the expenseg have

actually been incurred. Upon request, the Agency shall providae

Burlington with copies of all receipts and cther documents
evidencing such expenditures, excluding actual Agency employee
No reimbursement shall be required for the

signed timesheets.
costs for which no documentation was provided, until such time as
Said

the required documentation is provided for such costs.
detailed accounting shall include all response and overgight

costs incurred pursuant to this Consent Order by the Agency with

respect to this Ccnsent Order after the effective date of this

Specifically relating to the issue of future

Consent Decree.
response cost only, where the Dispute Resolution provision of

Section F is invoked herein in godd faith, each party to bear its
[

own legal costs associated with the regsolution of the future

response costs dispute.
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the accounting

required herein, any payments required herein shall be paid to
the Treasurer of the State of Illinois designated to the

11
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and submitted to:

Hazardous Waste Fund on the checn,

Illiriois Environmental Protection Agency
Fiscal Services Division
2200 Churchill Recad

F.O. Box 139276
Springfield, IL 52734-9276

e. The name and number of the case and Burlington's

rederal Identification Number ("FEIN") shall appear on the face

of all checks required herein.

f. Interest on Penalty

pursuant to Section 42(g) of the Act, 415 ILCS §/42(g)

(1394), interest shall accrue on any penalty amount not paid
within the time prescribed herein, at the maximum rate allowable

of the Illinois Income Tax Act, 35 ILCS

under Section 1003 (a)

5/1003(a) (1994).

i Interest on unpaid penalties shall begin to

acc¢rue from the date the penalty payment is
dues and continue to accrue to the date

payment is received.
ii. Where partial payment is made on arny payment
amount that is due, such partial payment
shall be first applied to any interest on
unpaid penalties them owing.

iii. All interest on penalties owed the plaintif£,
shall be paid by certified check payable to

!
the Treasurer of the State of Illinocis for

deposit in the Environmental Protection Trust

Fund and delivered to:

12



Illinois Environmental Pratection Agency
Livigion

.
; - .
; Figzal Gervices
road

2200 Churchill
F.O. Box 18276
springfield, IL 62734-3276

The name and number of the case and

Burliingrton's Federal Identification Number

{("FEIN"} shall appear on the face of the

check.

Burlington shall minimize the impact to the environment from

the approximately 5,800 - 6,800 gallons of diesel fuel spilled and

raleased at the site. The following is designed to achieve this

objective:
Onrapproximately Fabruary 14, 1994, Burlington

a.
provided to Plaintiff, a report titled, Phase I

Emergency Fuel Containment ("Fhase I Report®), which

outlined the activities and measures implemented by
Burlington in its initial response to contain, the

5,800 - 6,800 gallons of diesel fuel spilled and

releaged at the site. These included the following:
On January 20, 15393, absorbent material was

i.
placed in the creek immediately north of the

site where fuel was ponding.

.4i. Shallow cut-off trenches were dug on eithex
[
side of the tracks in the area of the spill and

[
two (2) over and under dams were constructed.

{{i. Booms were deployed at the east end of the

storm sewer and at the west end of the storm

gewer whera such gtorm sewer digcharges.

13



From February 8 - 10, 1992, four soil borings
were installed and completed as monitoring

in the area of

iv.

wells on earh side of the track
rthe diesel fuel releazse. Four additiecnal

monitoring wells were installed downgradient of

the area of the diesel fuel spill.

1993, Burlington retained

In approximately March,
{"Radian®), an

the services of Radian Corporation

Engineering firm, to characterize the subsurface
extent of any diesel fuel contamination of the site,

and to implement a diesel fuel recovery system.

These included but were not limited to the following

activities:
i. Scil and groundwater gampleg were obtained and
analyzed for total petroleum hydrocarbons

{"TPH"). The result from such sampling
activity showed diesel fuel contamination of

the area soil and groundwater. Free diesel

fuel was alsa cobgerved in one of the monitoring

wells.
1993, a

ii. Between April 2, 1933 and Augusat 17,

groundwater intercepter trench with a

groundwater dépreasion pump and scavenger pump

e
" was installed to remove free diesel fuel from

the groundwater.

14



iii. ©n May 30, 1993, a Wastewater Discharge Permit
IWDP-022 was issued by the Aurcra Sanitary

District ("Sanitary Districc") for the

discharge of grouncdwater from Burlingtcn's
remediation system to the sanitary districk

sewer. 525,360 gallons cf groundwater have

been pumped and discharged to the sanitary

district sewver.
iv, The Phase I Report provided for a Phase II
Follow-up Response which included among ather
things, the performance of a supplemental sits

characterization and evaluation of remedial

cptions.

tl

Effective immediétely,_suflington shall at all times

maintair in good working order its diesel fuel
cont:ainment énd recovery system.

Effective immediately and continuing until the site,
including the soil and groundwater, and cff-site
areas are remediated to meet any and all Agency-

approved closure criteria established for this
site, Burlington shall continue to monitor its

diegel fuel containment and recovefy system and
implement as appropriate, all measures designed to
prevént the diesel. fuel spilled and released at its
gite, from migrating further off-site. '

Nb later than sixty (60) days of entry of this
Cénsent Order, Burlington shall prepare and provide

ro the plaintiff and the Agency, a report which

15
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containment, recovery,
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remediation, menitoring and wmaintenance acriviries

conducted at the site since the Januvary 20, 1593

diesel fuel releass. Burlington shall also document

in said report all soil and groundwater analyses

conducted at the site from January 20, 1993 to the
date of entry of this Consent Order. Burlington

shall also include copies of all analytical results

and all boring logs obtained during this periocd of

time.

~ sentified .

Burlington shall determine the extent to which the soil
and groundwater are impacted by the diesel fuel released, and
shall remediate the ;ite including the scil and groundwater and

any off-site impacted area(s) to achieve the Agency-approved

closure criteria established for the site and to prevent
fiirther migration of the released and unrecovered diesel fuel.
The following is designed to achieve this requirement:

Béginning not later than forty-five (45} days from

a.
the date of entry of this Consent Order,

Burlington's Engineering Consultagtrshall prepare
and provide to the plaintiff and the Agency for
xeview and approval, a draft Phase II Work Plan
("Work Plan*) and schedule for all of the activities
réquired herein. This Work Plan shall include a
detailed description of the procedures for the

conduct of a study to determine the technical

fFeasibility of in-gitu bioremediation and scil

pR)



flusking as well as otner Lechnologically feasible
technologles to address snil and groundwater

remediation on and off-site. The Work Plan shkall

also include the activities to be performed for the
characterization of the soil and groundwater, the

identification of potential pathways of migraticn of
the diesel fuel contaminated soil and groundwater,

and identification of potentially affected human

and environmental receptors. The Work Plan shall

also propose the site closure criteria for the
plaintiff and Agency approval. Such approval shall

not be unreasonably withheld. The plaintiff shall
have thirty (30} days for the review of this Work

Plan. The plaintiff may extend the time for review
3
by a period not to exceed fourteen (14) days by

notifying Burlington prior to the expiration of the

initial thirty (30) day review period.
If the plaintiff accepts the Phase II Work Plan

i.
required in paragraph VII.C.3.a. above,
Burlington shall implement said Work Plan in
accordance with the schedule contained therein.

4f. If the plaintiff objects to any recommended

activity, or requires any additiocnal activity
to be performed by Burlington, it shall provide

Burlington with a detailed statement as to

reasong for its objections, including the

specific type of information which the

plaintiff deems Burlington did not provide in

17
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iv.

the Phase IJ Work Plan, or the cpaci
activity Burlington is required to perform.

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of any Phase
1I Work Plan disapproval or modification,
Burlington shall submit a revised Phase II Work
Plan to the plaintiff which incorporates the
modifications required by the plaintiff; or

shall invcke the Dispute Resolution provisions

of Section VII.F. below. If Burlington fails

to initiate the Dispute Resolution procedures
within the thirty (30) day time perijiod
specified herein, Burlington shall be deemed to
have agreed to the specified modifications.

In the event thag'the Dispute Resolution
provision of paragraph VII.F. herein, is
invoked, within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the resolution, of the dispute,
Burlington shall provide to the plaintiff a
revised Phase II Work Plan consisteht with the

results of the Dispute Resgolution addressing

Plaintiff's commentg. Plaintiff shall have

thirty (30) days to review this revised Phase

'II Work Plan.

Burlington shall initiate and complete the
implementation of the Phase II Work Plan

including the study of the technical
feasibility of in-situ bioremediation and soil

flushing or other possible technologies to

18



! and groundwater remedilation on and

address soil
off-site, within the time frame specified in

any Phase II Work Flan approved by the

Flaintciff.
Within forty-five (43} days of the completion of all

activities required pursuant to the plaintiff-
approved Phase II Work Plan, the engineering

cansulrant shall prepare a draft report of all Phase

II activities performed. This draft report shall be

submitted to the plaintiff and the Agency for review

and commenta. The draft report shall document the

study process including copies of all drawings
indicating all materials and equipment examined in
the study. The report shall also include,
Burlington's determination of technical feasibility
of in-situ bioremediation and soil flushing or other
technologies to address soil and groundwater
cemediation on and off-site, all findings of
Burlington's site characterization including results
of the groundwater sampling analyses, and all
identified potential pathways for migration of the
diesel fuel contaminated soil and groundwater and
the patentially affected human and envircumental
receptbrs. This draft report shall also inclﬁde any
and all recommended remedies including but not
limited to in-situ bioremediation and soil flushing

to remediare the site, as well as cther technelogies

to remediate soil and groundwater oo and off-site

19



Flaintiff shall have thirrty (30) days tc comment on

the drafr. reporc.
Within thirty {20} days of receiving plaintiff‘s

comments, Burlingten shail provide to the Plaintiff
a final report which shall incorporate the

Plaintiff's comments. Concurrent with this report,

Burlington shall notify the plaintiff and the Agency

to be taken by

in writing, of the action(s)
including sgil and

Burlington to remediate the site,

groundwater.
If Burlington proposes not to remediate the site,

including the soil and groundwater contamination, or
proposes an alternative remedial measure

outliﬁed ih ﬁts final ;epoft, the notificétiéh
required in Section VII.C.3.c. above shall set forth
in detail, all reasons for either the non-action or
the altermative remedial action being proposed.

The plaintiff retains the right to among other
things, rebut and/or reject Burlington's selection
of a particular remedial action or its decision of
non-action or selection of an altermative remedial
action mot outlined in its final report and pursuant
to Section VII.F. of this Consent Order, request
that the Kane County Circuit Coﬂft decide the
propriety of Burlington's decision.

If Burlington proposesg to remediate the site,

including the 90il and groundwater, the notification

required in Section VII C.3.c. above, must also

20



include for veview and approval, a work plan for

implementation of the selected remedial sctivity.
The work plan shall detail all soil end groundwater

remedial activities to be performed at the site and

the date(s) on which all such activities will ba

implemented. The Work Plan shall also propose the

site closure criteria for the plaintiff and Agency

approval. Such approval shall not be unreasonably

withheld.

i? If the plaintiff accepts the work plan for

implementation of selected remedial activities

required in paragraph VII.C.3.f. above,

Burlington shall implement the work plan in

accordance wiéh the schedule contained therein.
ii. IEf the‘plaintiff objects to any recommended

activity, or reqﬁires any additional actiwvity
or work to be performed by Burlington, it shall
provide Burlington with a detailed statement as
to the reasons for its objectiéns, including

thé specific type of information which the
plaintiff deems Burlington did not provide in

the work plan, or the specific activity or work
Burlington is required to perform.

Within thirty [30)'aays of receipt of any ;ork plan
disapproval or modification, Burlington shall submit o
a revised work plan to the plaintiff which

incorporates the modifications required by the

plaintiff, or shall invoke the Dispute Resolution

21



4.

provisions of Secrion VII F. below. JE Burlington
fails to initiate the Disputs Fescluticn procedures
within the thirty (20} day time period specified
herein, Burlington shall be deemed to have agreed to

the specified modifications.
In the event that the Dispute Resplution provision

of paragraph VII.F. herein, is inveked, within

thirty (30) days from the date of the resolution of
the dispute, Burlington shall provide to the
plaintiff a revised work plan consistent with the

results of the Dispute Resolution, addressing

plaintiff's comments. Plaintiff shall have thirty

(3¢) days to review this revised work plan.
Beginning thirty (30) days after Burlington
commences the seil and groundwater remediation
acrivities, and'monthl? for gix (6) months and
quarterly thereafter until the completigh of all
such remediation activities, Burlington shall
provide to the plaintiff and the Agency reports of
the progress of all remediation activities being
conducted at the site.

Bﬁrlington shall initiate and complete all soil and

groundwater remediation activities in accordance
o ” l ¢

withithe requirements of the plaintiff-approved Work

Plan and in accordance with any and all schedule

contained therein.

oraiack "Clogse-Qut" Report

a.

Subject to Section vIir.c.i.d. and e. abave, not

22



later than sixty (a0} days of the cempletion of all
remedial activities at the site, including snil and
groundwater remediation, Burlington shall

prepare and submit to the plaintiff and the Agency a

project "close-out" report. This report shall

include at a minimum the following:

1. A summary of all data required to be collected
pursuant to this Consent Order, including

sampling data from the soil and the groundwater

monitoring wells.
ji. A certification by an Illinois Registered
Professicnal Engineer that the reguirements

pursuant to this Consent Order have been met

consistent with the objectives of the Consent

Order, including the achievemernt of the Agency-

approved closure criteria. The certification

shall also include his/her conclusion(s)

regarding the condition of the site, including

the soil and groundwater.

iii. A compilation of each written report previously
prepared and provided to the plaintiff pursuant

to Section VI.C.3. above.

~iv. All laboracery Feports did Boring logs
i .
referenced in the data sumdary required herein.

plaintiff shall have ninety (50) days to review and

provide commernt (s) on the project "close-out” report
required herein. The plaintiff may extend this time
for review for a pericd not to exceed thirty (30)

23



days, by notifyipg Burlington in writing prior to

the initial (90) day review

the expiration of

period.
Within seven (7} days following the completion of

its review, the plaintiff shall notify Burlington in

writing whether plaintiff accepts or rejects the

project “close-out" report.

If the plaintiff accepts the project "clase-out”
report provided by Burlington, the report shall then

be filed by the parties with this Court as an
amendment toc this Consent Order, within fourteaen

(14) days of the date of the acceptance
notification.

If the plaintiff rejects the project "close-out”
report provided by Burlington it shall providg
Burlington with a detailed statement as to the
reasons for its rejécticn, including any
ingufficiency found in the evaluation of the
remediation activities conducted on and off-site and

the completeness of such remediation, the specifisd

type of information which the plaintiff deems

Burlington did not provide in the report or other
Plaintiff reserves

deficiencies contained therein.
[} .
its right to seek judicial intervention pursuant Lo

Section VII.F. belaow to resolve any dispute

regarding the project “close-out”™ report.

Certification and Reports

All certifications, correspondence(s), documents,

24
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notificaticna, reports, plans, scope of work, svudies, and any other

documentacion required by this Consent Order shall be submitted in

writing and sent by certified mail or any other form cof mail
delivery which raccrds the date of receipt, to the plaintiff and the

Agency at the addresses which appear below or to such other

addresses which the plaintiff and the Agency may hereafter designate

in writing.
RoseMarie Cazeau

John Waligore
Senior Assistant Attorney General

Assistant Counsel . .
“Environmental Bureay

Illinois EPA
P.O. Box 19276 Illinois Attorney General's Office
2200 Churchill Road 100 ¥. Randolph Street,lith Flr.
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 Cnicago, Illinois 60801
Stan Komperda - Michele Niexrmann
Bureau of Land Assistant State's Attormey
Illinois EPA ' Kane County State's Attorney's
2200 Churchill Road Offica
Springfield, IL 62794 Kane County Judicial Center
' 37 W 777 Route 38, Suite 200
' St. Charles, IL 60175-7535
Chicage, Illinois 60601
Dennis Ahlberg Howard Chinn, FP.E.
Emergency Response Unit Chief Engineer
Illinois EBPA , Illinois Attorney General's QCffice
2200 Churchill Road ‘ 100 W. Randolph Street, 1lth Flr.
Chicago, IL 60601

Springfield, IL 62794
2. All documents including plans, approvals and all other

correspondences to be submitted to Burlington pursuant to this

Consent Order shall be sent to:

Michael L. Sazdanoff, Rsq.. Greg Jeffries, Manager

Kenneth J. Hyaoglad & Asaoc;a:es Environmencal Operations
Burlingron Northern Railroad Co.

2200 West Monroe Stxeel 4105 Lexington Avenue

Chicago, Illinocis %0606 North Arden Hills, MN 55126

Elizabheth Hill

Law Department
Burlington Northerm Rail Co.

3800 Continental Plaza

777 Maig Street
Fore Worth, TX 76102
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£ Coase and Deslsl

. m

shall cease and desistc From

Burlington and Southern Pacific

viclaeticn of the Act, any and all of 25 Ill. Adm. Code, Subtitle ¢

and any and all federal laws and requlations except as specifically
provided in this Consent Order. Burlington shall at all times
properly operate and maincain its site and take all reasonable

measures to prevent releases which violare the Act and the Board's

Air Pollution Regulations, in.accordance with the Compliance Plan

set forth in Section VII.C.

The parties shall use their best efforts to resclve all
disputes or differences of opinion arising with regards to this
Consent Order, informally and in good faith. IE, howe%er,
disputes arise concerning this Consent Order which the parties

; .

are unable to resolve informally, either party may, by written

motion, regquest that an evidentiary hearing be held before the

Kane County Circuit Court to resolve the dispute between the

parties. '
Burlington shall have the burden of persuvasion, by a
preponderance of the evidence, on all issues ccncerning the

activities required in Sections VIL.C.2., VII.C.3. and VII.C.4.
Except as specifically provided herein

of this Consent Order.
and in Section VII.G. below, the rules of civil procedure shall

govern these proceedings.
T
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G. Force Majsure

Force Majeure for purposes of this Consent Order sz

1.
defined a3 any event arising from causes bevond the control of

Burlington which delays or prevents the perfecrmance of any
"Force Majeure" shall not

obligation under this Consent Order.
include increased costs or expenses agsociated with performance

of the cobligations under this Consent Order.
When an evenr occurs which will delay the timely

2.
completion of any obligation under this Consent Order, whether or

not caused by a force majeure event, Burlingten shall promptly

notify the plaintiff and the Agency in writing within forty-eight
Within ten (10} days

(48) hours of the occurrence of the event.
of the occurrence of the event which Burlington cocntends will he
responsible for a delay, Burlingﬁon shall also proviae to the
plaintiff and the hgency in writirig, the reason(s) for and
anticipated duration of such délay; the measures taken and to be

taken by Burlington to prevent or minimize the delay, and the
Failure to

timetable for implementation of such measures.
provide the 48-hour notice and/or provide the 10-day follow-up
written explanation to the plaintiff and the.ﬁgency in a timely
manner, shall constitute a waiver of any claim of force majeure.
3. If within thirty (Bd) days of the date of Burlington's
48-hour notification, the plaintiff 4GF¥é€s thak a delay is or
will be attributable to a force majeure event, the parties shall
modify the relevant schedules to provide such additional time as

may be necegsary to allow the completion of the specific

obligation.
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If the plaintiff and urlingron cannct agrees whether
or whether

-

the reasnn for the delay was a force majeure event,

the duration ¢f the delay is or will be warranted under the

Burlington may invoke the Dispute Eesolution

circumstances,
However,

of this Consent Order.

provisions of paragraph VII. F.
invoking the Dispute Resolution provisions of Secticn

Burlington
Burlington

is not in and of itself a force majeure event

VII.F.
has the burden of proving force majeure by a preponderance of the

evidence.

H.  Right of Entry
1 the Agency, its

In addirion to any other authority,
employées and representatives, and the plaintiff his agents and
representatives, in accordance with constiturional limitations,
shall have the right af entry into ana ﬁpon Burllnéton’s site

whl;h iz the subjec¢t of this Consent Order, at 2ll reasonable

tlmes, with twenty four (24) hours notice, for the purposes of

carrylng out lnspectlons including taking photographs, collecting
and enforcing the terms of this

samples, collectlng information,

Consenk Order.
The individuals conducting any inspections of the site shall

make all reasonable attempts to ensure that inspection activities

will not impede the safe and efficient operation of rail traffic

at the site. Further, the individuals conductiny thé ingpections

will comply with reasonable site safety rules and requlations in
A copy of

effect at the site at the time of such inspections

Burlington's Safety Rules and Regulations were provided to the

plaintiff.

28



Transfcr of Interest

by

N less than thircy (30) days prior teo any transfer hy
Surlincton of an ownership interest and/or control .in the

Burlington's site, Burlington shall notify the plaintiff and the

Agency of the transfer, as provided in Section VII.D.1.
Burlington shall also notify the transferee of this Consent Order

and provide to the transferee a copy of this Consent Order.
Burlington shall include in any agreement or contract for such
provision requiring the transferee to implement the

transfer a
In any

plan contained in Sectien VII.C. herein.

compliance
event, Burlington shall remain responsible for the completion of

all activities specified herein.
J-. Covepant Not o 3Jue

Upon receipt of Southern Pacific's payment of a $583,000.00
penalty jointly with Burlingten and commitment to refrain from
fﬁture violations of the Act, the plaintiff or State covenants
not to sue or bring any civil, judicial or administrative action

against Southern Pacific for known viclations of the Act which
In the

were the subject matter of the Consent Order herein.
event the $85,000.00 penalty is not paid, the State shall be

raleased from this covenant not to sue.
Further, nothing in this Ceonsent Order shall be construed as

a waiver by the plaintiff of the right to redress future
the Board's regulations, or this Consent

violations of the Act,
Order, or to obtain penalties with respect thereto.

2. Burlipgtan

Upan receipt of purlingten's payment of a $85,0060.G0 penalcy
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of past costs of

ment

jointly with Southern Pacific and the pay

the actions Burlington has taken to date, the

$1,4320.55 and

complertion of all actions required pursuant to this Consent Order
and commitment to reimburse the plaintiff its future response and
oversight costs and to refrain from future violations of the Act,
the plaintiff or State covenants not to sue or bring any civil,
judicial or administrative action against Burlington for known

viplations of the Act which were the subject matter of the
In the event any money oﬁing the State is

Consent Order herein.
not paid and/or Burlington refuses or fails to perform to

completion all actions required by this Consent Order, the State

shall be released from this covenant not to sue.
Further, nothing in this Consent Oxder shall be construed as

a waiver by the plaintiff of the right to redress future

violarions of the Act, the Board's regulatibns, or thig Consent

Order, or to obtain penalties with respect théreto.

Upon entry of this Consent Order, any party hereto, upon

motion, may reinstate these proceedings solely for the purpose of
This

enforeing the terms and conditions of this Consent Order.

Consent Order is a binding and enforceable Order of the Court and
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such through any and all availalile means.

PECPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

ex rel. JAMES E. RYAN,
f the

Attorney General of
State of Illincis

may bhe enforced as

MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief
Environmental Enforcement Division

. -
¥ =
Date: 1 ,fff(? { By: WC@L
WILLIAM D. SEITH, Chief

Environmental Bureau
Assistant Attcraey General

ex rel. DAVID R. AKEMANN,
State's Attorney of

By

Chief, Civil Division .
e . .

ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

14

JOSEPH E. SVOBODA
General Counsel

BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD COMEANT

Date: }f:a/qg By : i W W
Title: M

SOUTHERN BACIFIC
RBNSPORTATION COMPANY,
subsa.dz.nry of SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAIL

RRORATION, and SPCSL Corp.

I‘Jate:. // /iﬁé -By:

Date: l’gtig ' By:

FEB 0':; ’ Judge

c:\upuiné o\ wpdocsimmisc\rmecaldb

Entered;
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Project Munajer G A Y T au 5

Rernedial Project Mouagement Scction N Y . T

Ilirnois Baviyonmentad Protection Agenoy = py 2 iy A 'é--"""""".':'/’" | ) T,

2200 Churekill Road LT LOINR . Y e R

Springfield, Lllinvis 62794-9276

RIC:  Site Closure Reguest, Dicsel Yuel Spill Sife - Boix, INinois (RN TI0-D1905-811)
IBPA Incident No. 930190

Dear Mr. Komperda:

On beholf of The Burlington Novihern and Santa Fe Raitway Company (BNEF), Thermal:eec
Consuldng Comoration {(ThemoRetee) is providing additional informeaiion o he THinnis
Envitonmental Proteotion Agency (IEPA) so that a Site Closure Requesi can be considered for the:
diese] fuet spill site lucated in Eola, 1Minois (Site).

On November 6, 1998, ThermoRetee submitted 8 Project Close-Our Repors (Report) {or the Sile.
The puipose of the Repori was (o provide the IEPA with mformation that supported site-closu:

The Repori conienis are sununarnzed below:
v Inecident sumynary

- Intyoduction of past subraittals

Resuits of additional site investigation activities conducted on and off BNSF propeity 10
further characterize whe Site

v Description of the selected remedial aliemative
Results of the in situ bioremediation pilot study conducted at momto:mf, wells MW-5 and

MW-14
o - EXHIBIT
Results of a fioal gronndwaler monitoring event conducted on July 15, 19938

A cupy of the Project Closeout Repovt is provided i Attachment A,

Based on results of {he groundwater nonitoring event conducted on Juty 15, 1998, Tier 1 Tiered
Approach to Cleanup Objectives (1ACQO) remediation oljuctives were notexcended. Thercive, the
project closeout request was submitied to the IEPA, AEGEIVED

AR Y 5 200
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On several vosasions since submitial of the Project Closeont Report, Thenuaiewe has izpeiten
monitoring wells MW-5 and MW-14 for the presence of peboleuin product. Fetvleun PO LT
not observed during smy af the mspuciions,

Based ou e esults of the groundwates sampling corducted in 1998 thatindicaes groundesiter Lo
longrer excesds the Tier 1 TACO stundards and inspeciions of MW-5 and MW-14 thur indicales
petroleum product hias been recovered to the extent practical in both wells, TrennaRewc requetts

that the Site be closed.

If you have any quesions, please cal) me at (651) 222-0841 or Mr. Grey Jefiries of EMEF w1
(763) 782.3483.

Smcerely,
Thermaetee Conzulting Corporation
) e, S
. Al
- —~-".,. ,/(’ "/‘s-'/. .
C _,JZJ g '%//']

Daryl R. Beck
Envirvruaental Englicer

DRB sy
Altachments

ce: G, Jeffrien, BNSYE

FAPROJGETWIRNS FU 000 B0GCOITREGULA T W OmPER DO
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Novanber 6, 1998

Me. Rose Marie Cuzeau

Senior Assistant Avomey General
Environrmencal Burean

fllinois Attorney General's Office
100 W, Randolph Sureet, 11th Floor
Chicago, Itlinois 60601

i Project Close-Out Report, Diesel Fuel Spill Site - Eola, {linois (3-1908-700)
1A Incidenic Number: 920190

Deny My, Cazenw:

G behstf of The Burtington Northexn and Sance Fe Rallway Company (BNSF), RETEC
is providing his project close-out xeport {Repor) to the State of [linois and the Miawis
Pollution Conarol Agency (IEPA) for the dievel fuel spill site Jocated in EFola, INinols
(Siee). This Repurt was completed in accordance wirh the Consent Ordex dared
February S, 1996, related 1o the spill site. The Report provides a swintnary of Sic
remediadon and wmonitoring activitics. Basad on the results of the remediadion and
monitoring activities, FETEC recommends that the Site be closed.

T'hi Report contains the following Attachments:

¢ Autachinent A - Tables and Yigures
+ Autachmeot B - Analytical Laboratory Reports

SITE BACKGROUND

On January 20, 1993, 2 head-an collision becween ant eastbound Southern Pacific txain
and a westbound ENSFE rain resulted in a diesel fuel spill esdimared ai 5,300 to 6,800
pallons from daunaged diesel tanks on locomotives of Lorh traing. Response efforts were
irmraediately focused on removing the injured train crews from the locomotives. Or.ce
access was permitied to the Sice, it was determiined thac three oF the seven leconiotives
irevolved in the accident lad damaged fuel tanks that spilled diesel Fuel.
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The Site is lovated i Kane County, lliinots novthieasy of fAnuroce and wese of e G
PR E ¥ I TR B . FUPRNE DRVRNRN S A (PSR PPN T IR . T BN I el
B erackage, The Site is locaced ta Section 13, Fowsslup 38 Moy, Roape &1y

and 15 shown en Figure L

G Jaouary 20, 1993, BNIE and her conomaors arvived oo the S Yo praavide
cinerjienty spill wespoass services. S\ suramary wf the vespornus aovivides is providod 1
the document Stans Zeport, Diesel Fuel Spill Site, Eola, Hibwls dated Merelh 1996 (Siuls
Repord). The Status Report was complewed in dccordunce with the Conseny Oiter,

In 1993 and 1995, soil and grounidwater investigations were conducced (o derevimine whe

extent of impact caused by the diese] Fuel celease. Resules of che soil and growidwates
investigations are provided in the Status Repoit. The 1993 lnvestigation was condurizd
vo define the extent of hnpacts caused by the diesel fuel spill. The 1995 fuvestigacon
was conduceed to furcher define subsurface impacis, in paniculi, the area below i
mainline railroad wacks.

ADDITIONAL SITE INVESTICATION

Sail

As past of the Consant Order, additional subsurface investigation activiaes i
conducied on and off BNSF propecty at vhe Site, Additional subsurface fnvestdgaden
activities ave described in the docurnent Waork Plan, Diesel Fuel Spilt Site, Lula, Hlinvis
daced March 1996. Tn May 1996, four soil borngs, designaced SB-1 theough SB-4, weee
conducted to determine subsurface soil irnpacts. These four boudngs were condusted un
BNSE property. Locations of the soil borings are shown on Figure 2. Soil samples verre
collecred from each of the soil bovings and analyzed for benzene, wlvens, cdhylbanen,
and xylenes (BTEX) and polycyelic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAYs).

In March 1997, RETEC conduceed the off-site portion of the addidonal subsurface
investigation. Fleven soil borings were cornpleted along the southera propeity boundaiy.
Four of the soil borings were completed as monitoring wells. Soil samples were collecred
frorn soil borings SB-5, SB-6, MW-23, and MW-24 and analyzed for BTEX and PALLs.
Soil sarnple results of the oa- and ofF-site subsurface Investigation are provided in Tablu
1. None of the soll sanples colleceed during che on-uand uff-sice subsiuitce bvesiigitiva
excezded the Tier 1 corrective acdon objectives presented in the IEPA guidarve
docurmnent Tiered Approach to Cowxective Action Objectives (TACO).

Croundyvatar ‘

Groundwater samples were also collected during the two investigation events. 1o May
1996, proundwater samples were collected from monitoring wells MW-2, MW.3, MW -,
MW-6, MW.-7, MW.§, MW.9, MW-10, and MW-17. fa Apil 1997, prowndwaler
samples were collected feom MW-2, MW.3, MW.4, MW.9, MW-10, MW.21, MW-22,

Y

-
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MW-23, anid MW-22. Saaple vesults are provided in Table 20 ased on resoles ol e
groundwater iavesagaion, seveal parameless exceeded wheic Tier 1 1TACS corecure
action objectives. In wdditon, peuslean produce was sull prasencin mowd iy, el

MW-5 and MWL and i che vecovary treneh surnp.

Results of the May 1996 onesite invesugadon were reporeed o the Stawe ol Mineis wn
the [EPA 31 the document Feasibiliiy Study, Diesel Fuel Spill Site, Lot flinvis (Feasibilicy
Study) daced June 1996, Results of the March 1997 oft-site investigation yoaic iopaned
to the Svace of Minots and the TEPA in & letter report dated June 2, 1997,

SITE REMEDIATION

Using results of the 1993, 1995, and 1996 soil and groundwacks investigaiions, R LT
conducicd a study o derevming closure criveria for the Site and o select a remading
alternative to achieve closure, Results of the study are presenced L the reasibilicy
Study. Cleanup objectives for soil and groundwater were determined using the TEPA
TACO guidance maratal. Sice-speafic closure criteria developed in the Feasibilivy Soudy
art provided in Table 2.

Several rechnologies were screencd during preparation of the Feasibilivy Study. The
remedizl alternstive that was seleced to vemediate the Site is described below:

- Operating the exisdng recovery cranch to collect free product and prevent frec
product from entering the drainage dich.

« Installing a recovery well where monitoring well MW-14 is located and placing
a hydrephobic collection surap to recover free product.

+ Monitodng the progress of inuinsic biorernediation through groundwater
monitoring. .
« Recognizing the high-traffic railroad usage of the Site as a land use resuiction.
The exsting recovery wrench had been installed shortly after the incident oceurred, In
Apil 1997, he 1EPA accepted the remedial alternative selected in the Feasibility Study
in additlon to conducting a fn situ biorernediation pilot scudy, which is suntmarized
below.

Petrolemm product cecovered in che recovery wench surap was yermoved wwice auonthiy.
Recovery trench operation was suspended in July 1997, following 1EPA approval, due
to the inslgnificant amount of petoleum product being recovered. Absorbenc pillows
were placed in the recovery aench sump 1o recover residuzl peixolenm product.
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RETED wlgo conducesd ]I'lUﬂL]l‘l)’ h‘;SPCCL’i:'.'mE: (i refover peroham J::Lsu"iu::_ 1 .
mcndioring wells, Absoibent bouias were placed in ronioring wells MW-5 zad ivivn-1
10 wecevier Bee phase peoolana producl,. The absorteat bovins wad pillows v
ceplieed durdng each monthly inspecdon v nonionng event.

>

s deseribed whove, groundwater samples wege collected in 1996 wud 1997 Hom wclecied
e moanitodng wells. Sample vesulis are provided in Table 2.

i

SN SITU BIOREMEISIATION PILOT STUDY

The objective of the in siat bioremediation pilot study was to evaluafe the aitects of
increasing subsurface oxygen level on the depradation of residual percoleum produce al
moritoling wells MW-S and MW-14. In June 1997, a sluny of Oxygen Reieic
Comnpound {ORC) was injecied in the subsuface over an area approxinately 20 feel by
20 feet around each well. The ORC was installed using a high pressare injecdon systan
at 20 interval of 3 to 7 feec below die ground surkace.

J7 sicu blorercdiation perforaance was monitored monthly for six monids by eoliecting

“water anid air samples at monitoring wells MW-5 and MW-14. - The two welis wai
monitored Gom Junz 1997 to january 1998. Perfonmance moaitoring resulis Yecrd
provided 1o the (EPA in & sununary lecter report dated April 7, 1998, la the susanary
leceer repore, RETEC reconunended inspecting Site moriwring wells bi-monthly for six
cronehs 1 decermine if pecroleun product rerursied to MW-5 and MW- 14, 1§ petroleuss
product was not observed at the end of six months, 11 Site monitoring wells, including
MW-5 and MW-14, would be sampled o detennine if groundwaicr met the IEPs
approved clocure criteria listed in the Feasibility Study. Petroleumn product "was noc
obsexved from Seprember 1997 through February 1998,

STLE CLOSUNE EVALUATION

On July 15, 1998, monicoring wells MW-1, MW-3, MW-6, MW-9, MW.-10, MW-14,
and MW-21 through MW-24 were sampled. Monicoring well MW-5 way sampled i
July 30, 1998. Samples were analyzed for BTEX and PAHs. Sample results ave provided
in Tables 2 and 4.

Croundwater at the Site has been remedizted to mect closure cviteda sex Oedy in whe
Feasibility Study and approved by the JEPA based on dhe following:

. Results of the July 1998 groundwater sampling event do nou exceed Tier 1
"ACO corrective acdun objecuves, except for benzo (a) andhiacene at
monitoring well MW.23,
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- Pepoleta prodect s not baen observed in manitoiy wolls MWD
WA 14 0 i uhe vecovery bench sinp since Septawbar 1957,

Berwa (1) arnheacene was detected at 0,66 wicrogranis pet liics {ug/L} 1 moniodng well
MIV-22 . e Tier 1 TACO correnive acdon objective for benzo (&) andwacene 1 G605
ug/L. Lased on atelephone conversadon with My, Studey Komperdio of the 1E2S on
Septembir 4, 1998, a Ver 2 TACO evaluadon would na be wequized for die benzo (&)

anthiacene exceedence at MW-22, Therefore, RETEC recornmends due Site be dluswt

with no furcher acdon.  Upon approval of this recommendation o cloge the Sire, the
moxicoring wells will be scaled and the vecovery trench decommissioned.

If you have any quesdons conceening this matter, please coatact cither of vs av (551)
222-084) or Mr. Jum Cunningham of BNSF at (612) 782-3583.

Sincerely,.

Rﬁl\f[li}j[f\'l‘l@?\l TRCHNOLOGIES, INC.

POy — N S
(g-x‘/ﬂfﬂ“!-'f i

e e e - = = AW e
Dyl R Beck, P =, Clihave vil % Putzier 7
Favirommernal Engioser Senior Hydrogeologist

I hereby cerdly that this plan, specification, of xeportvias prepa «d by e oy undes any
direct supervision and that 1 am 3 dury Repistered Professional Engincer under che laws
or’nyStntc of Hinois.
(e

/A

Zi z}i__,é.z/ 062:D4601 6

——na

Kure M: Geiser, P, E. - Regisiration Nurnber .
Environmenral Engineer _ oy
Reraediation Yechnologies, Inc. sl 76
St. Paul, Minngsota - Diie )

Attachinenus

cc: §. Waligore - IEPA
" 8. Komperds - iEPA
. Allbexg - TEPA
M. WNiemann - Kane Coutny State Arvorney's Office
H. Ching, P. E. - Tinois Attorney General’s Office
M. Sazdanoff, £sq. - Kenneth J. Wysoglad & Associates, w/o enclosure
J. Cuveninghany, BINSE '

FAFILO]ECTWAR NS P 808 Losy RENEP ALY L
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Tabie 3 - TACO Tier 1 Suil and Groundwater Cleanup Objesnves

Pararneter

S0il Clesnup

Clase il Croihnudwaisy

Objectives Cleunip Objeciives
{uy/i<a) {tig/L)

Polycyclic Avomaiic Hydrocarbuus i
Naphihalene 47,000 s ]
Acchaphtherie 1.000.000 zibe ]
Fluarenc 800,00u 1.0 -
Anthracene 21,500,000 10,500
Flusranthene 4,900,000 },-00 2
p)'.'m'lc _ 7.060.00C i [_)50 . 1|.
Benzo{a)anchracers _ 3500 T oes T
Chryzene 5.000 N 7.5 e
Benzo(b)fivorandhenc | 8.000 09
Benzo{k}fAuorandns - 20,000 0,85
Benzola)pycene 500 2
Dibenzof{ah)unthraccog 800 LS
Indenofl,23-c.dlpyrene 8,000 215 ]

BTEX Covapoundds - — 7
Benzens 100 L 25 i
Tolucne 12,500 2.500 |
Exhyibenzenc ] 7,000 Lot __
Aylencs 74,000 10,0007 N
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L Lt Y RS, I A
25 “u." e d b -
p ) LI PO, OX 285, NG NVRGNT STRERT

B NENY UL, AN BE073-0243
FLOHE {5071 354-5517 WATS 1300) T82-3557 FAX (507) 3702000

Wi ARE AN BQUAL OFFORTUNICY ¥MPLOYE

Repert Date: 0 Sen 1988

Lab tlusbers 93~
Work Oedur #:
DARYL BECK pecount il 018
RETEC
413 WUaCOUTA ST STE 400
ST PrUL BN 55101

g N

Date Received: 31 Jul 1ybd
Date Sampled: 30 Jul 1998
Yemperacure ot Receipuo: $.0 U

, Praject Mama: [ONIF EOLA, TL Project HNumber; I-1808-400
EPA SLBas Meihod 3020/5030 rOOIFIED PVOC mnalysis Date: & hug L¥nd

PVOL Uilution Factor: 1
Sampla Description: MW-S

ANALYTE Result Units ® Anelyst

Etlszlzhea;?,t'a:u:::u'n::::::uzr-'-':.s:uw::n:lﬂxuﬁtwn:‘::-'-ﬂ#-‘;w;ﬂ: [ =t A i PR T PR Y 25 P g
Berzens { 1.1 peh 1.1 KE
Teluane (1.0 ppb 1.0 KE
Echyl Ba-zens { 1.1 pob 1.1 KE
Xylenmasz (VoTal) { 3.5 ppb 3.5 ke

BAA-TFT (SURRDGATE} RECIOVERY: 96 %

RL == Reporcing Limite

BYEX/GRO Sample pH ( 2

Al)l data for Thic report has been approved by MVTL Lahoratory dariagenant.

WVTL s th o i of i shdy e Gasd b the simplvilattred B Vesdar, o3 ok Tl e MVEL U it ek 345t ottt 4 el £y s w0 E- Witoinged vkt
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16000700 Lzl

4 P BUX 249, 1126 M. FRONT STREET
+ NELY WL, M SB0T3-024Y
PHURNE (S07) 354-05107 WALS 1BUD} Tu2-0857 FAXAGYY) 2810w

Wi calel aN QUAL OlFORYUNIYY Bidi LOYZw
Heport Date: 1 Sep 1899

Lab dumber: 3-L18349
Hork Order e #2137

prrYL GECK fAfecount i 019009

RETEC

413 LACLUTA ST STE 40D

ST #AUL MN 55101
Date Recelved: 31 Jul 1998
Date Sampled: 30 Jul 1993
Tamperature aT Recelpr: 9.0 C

Project Numw: BNSF £oca, YL Project Number: 3-1908-000

EPA SW--8a6 Mathod GIL0: Mutrhod Detection Limits Daxe Extrocted: o &g 1598
determined occurding to 4CCFR, Appendix B, Date Analyzed: 2 Sep L1990
Parc 136, 1992. Dilution Foctor: 3

Sample Decceription: M5

POLYHUCLEAR SROMATIC RYDROCARDONS Reculy  Unlte L

- mEs=TELs =i at AR EE R S - EoiEmTs = [S i o by
i~Methyl Naphchalene ¢ 0.132 ug/fL 0.LE2
2-Methyi dNaphthalane { 0.112 ug/L 0.112
Aceraphchens ¢ 9.135 ug/L 0.138
Acenspiithylene { 1.980 ug/L 1.960
Anthracensz { 0.095 up/tL 0.0%96
Benzo(a)anthracene ¢ 0.026 ug/L 9,026
Benzu(a)pyrena ¢ n.z20l ug/L 0.20L
Berrxo(h) fluvranthene { 0.2u5 uy/siL 0.204
Benzo(ghi)parylene { 0.07Y ug/L 0.079
Senza{k) fluoranthrene { 0.23a2 ug/fL 0.234
Chrysane ¢ 0.016 ug/L 0.016
Diberizo{ah)unthracene ¢ 0.076 ug/L T~ 0.076
Fluaranthene 0.820 ugfL - ©.1i3%
Fluorans 0.310  uwg/L g.23¢
Indeno(l,2,3~cd)pyrene { 0.162 ug/L~  w.15Z
Naphthalene { 0.125 ug/L 0.12%
Plhenantchrene ¢ 0.106 ug/L 0,206
Pyrene 0.280 uwg/L 0.032

p-TERFHENYL (SURROGATE) RECOVERY: 107 %
v Rl adjusted due to sample matrix
RL = Repcrting Limius

A1l date Tu- this repurt has been approved by WVTL Loborarary Hanageent.
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F o SREER PO, 805 248, 126 N FRONT STRERY
e LT RIRW ULAA, it 560730249
Forl (507 350817 WATS {G00) 782-3837 FAX (207) 3540-20550

WE Afeh AN EQUAL OFPORIUNITY Bl LOY S¥e

Report Dufe: o Sep 1490

Lab Humber: 95-L18330
: Lork Order bz Zz—-477
DaRYL BECK Accounc H#: 019169
RETEC
413 UnCOUTA ST EVE A0O
ST PAUL MW 55101
Date Received: 31 Jul 1390
Date Samplerd: 30 Jul 1998
Temparature at Receipt: 9.0 C
Proaject Hame: BWNSF EOLA, YL Project Numbar: 3-1v08-400
EPA SW-846 |luthiod 802075030 MOOYLFIED PVOC mnalysis Data: 6 Koy LB
. PVYOC Dilution Facter: 1
Sample Descrlption: TRIP 8LANK

AMALYTE Result Units RL Analyst
el e e e S TS LTI T A 2 i S =t =TS oV e e D e R LN
Benzane ¢ 1.1 ppb 1.1 KC
Toluene - - : (L.0 - ppb 1.0 KE

Cthyl Benxene ¢ L.1% ppb 1.1 KE

Xylemes (otal) ( 3.5 ppb 3.5 K¢

AAA-TFT (SURROGATE) RECOVERY: 88 %

L = Reparting Linits

BTEX/GRO Sample pH ( 2

All data for this report has bewn approved by MVTL Laboratory Hanzgemeni.
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y e . T

L0 B0 248, 1B R FHONT STREET
! NEW Ubain, bl 5507340249
FHONE (507) 354-8517 WATS (B00) 752-3557 Fiog {sly) 300 200

Wi AL AN EQUAL OPFORTUNITY ERPLOYEL:
“Meport Duter 3 aux E5G0

Lab Huuber: S0-L16641L
Work Ocder 4 21-270

TEDD NG NC Acceunt F: 019159
RETEC

§1% WAGOUTA ST w1E <00
1 PAUL MM 55101
Date Received: 17 Jul 19058
Date Sawpled: 15 Ju) 1998
Tempersture ot Beceipv: OF IGKE
Projeci Hume: BNSF EOLA,IL Project Nuwbec: 3-14908-400
EPA SH-HaG Method BO20/503Q MODIFIED PVOC Analysie Dater 22 Jul 1ust
: evoC-Dilutbion Fuctov: 1
Sanple Descriprion: MW-2Z1

ANALYTE Result Units RL Atlalysu
:::=:=:=::‘.::‘:.:::===::::-_"_-=:=:.':.'::=::=::='.:=====.—...‘.:= ZzE==== EEE= —==Somm== SN DT
tenzene < 1.1 pph 1.1 EE
Moluene . < 1.0 ppb 1.0 KX

Eihyl Denzene <1.l pub 1.1 8>

Yylenes {Tot2l) Co - < 3.5 ppb 4.5 KE -

AAA-TFT {SURROGATE) EECOVERY: 93 =

RL = Repoviiag Liwits

BTEX Ssuple pH < 2

l1 dsta for this revorst bog beew sypproved by HVIL Laboratory Manngewent.
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07 0. LOK 24, 1128 M. FRONT STREET
KAV ULk, AN BRTI-U24D
Pt ‘luu!}JJ1 SEYT WATS (BOU) TBZ-3457 FAX (LU SO0

Vil it AN EQUAL OPYFORT UNTTY ¥alsr LOVER
Meport Date:r 3 Ay 1094

i TR
- o aee e

-

fa

Lulb Nuwber: 98-LIcGil
. Vock Ovdesr &0 21270
THDD HONHIWG Account 4@ 019159
NETEC '
w13 WACQIITA BT STL &0
ST AL Wi 55101
Date Recoived: 17T Jul 1U9Y
Date Samplad: 10 Jul 1994
Tenperature st Receivpt: O ICE

Yirojest Name: BNSW EOLA, YL Project Nuwber: 3-1906-400

EPA 26-B46 Method 8J10: Method Detsction Liwits Date Extractod: 22 Jal 1998
detevulned according to 40CFR, Appendix B, Date Analyzed: 30 Jul 1983
Purt 136, 1592 . Ditution Fectov: d

Lemple Description: MH-2)

lalYHUCLVfR pROP AT[L BY DRUCARBONS Result Uaits UL

1 "1' n"‘. Nﬂ-ph‘.hﬂ-lx I
r-Me Lll) 1 R yhf.ho-‘ =Mt
scenarhthiene
acvensphihylens

Arthracene 0.096 weg/L 0.Q38
Benzol{s)enthracens 0.02§ v/l 0,U24
Benzo(s)pyrene 0.201 up/L 0.201

<
4
4
<
4
{
4
Benzo{l) fluovunthenc ¢ 0.20% wy/L 0.205
Benzo{ghilperylens ¢ 0.079 uu/L 0.019
tenzo{k)fluoranthrene < 0.234 ue/L 0.234
<
<
L4
<
4
<
£
0

Chrysene 0.016 ue/L 0.016
Bibvenzo(ab)enthsaceue 0.076 ug/L 00718
Flucranthene 0.132 ug/L 0.132
Fluorene 0.23¢ uz/L 0.234
Indenv{l,2,3-cdpyrena 0.152 wg/L 0.152
Hephthulene 0.125 ug/L .125

0.106 ug/L 0.106
190 wg/t 0.033

Phenunthrene
Pyrene
p-TERPIENYD (SURRUGATﬁ) PECOVERY: 72 X

# RL zdjusted due to sowple watrix

RL = Repueting Liuits

11 dota for this report bas bezen upproved by BYTL Liboratory ManigeaenT.
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R PRSIV AR P SR T

s dyal.
v Pl BOX 28, 1126 M, FRONT STREEY
I NCW ULM, KN SE07L-0ZeY
PhORE (567) 354-0517 WATS (800} 72-3557 FaX (50T} 3Cu-2 650
Wi ARE AN PQUAL, OPPORTUNITY A LOVER _
Repore Debe:r 3 any 1udd

Lab Nuwber: 9%-L1004%
Horl Oeder v 21-%
TEDy GONg e dccount & 01915
REYLC
§13 WATGUTA ST STE 400
8T PAUL MK 55101
Data Received: L7 Jul 1998
Date Sawpled: 15 Jul 1598
Tewperature st Receipi: 0¥ ICE

Projeet Wome: BNST KOLA,LL Project Number: 3-1508-400
LPA SY-116 Method 802075030 WODIFIED PYOC Anulysis Data: 22 Jul 1990

TVOC Dilution Fuctor: |
Sauwple Description: Mi-C2 .

ANALYTE o Result Units AL Annlyst
PR PR F R o a4 ErmEZo DEoRE mE:Sound Loz os
Benvons: <1.1  ppb 1.1 KE
Foluens 1.1 ppb i.D e

tthyl Benzens < 1.1  ppb 1.1 KE

Xylenes (Total) ¢ 3.5 ppb 3.5 K1

AAA-TEL [SURROCATE} RTCOVERY: 103 %

RGL = Repocting Limiis

BTEX Jawple pH < ¥

\11 deta vor this raport has beeu approved by RVIL Labovatory Munsgement.
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e R oL, e

. TR S Nt 2 BT e W0 7 THL A an CROR o P }
N EAT e TGRS e S
ek RQL GO 28, 3126 N FROWT STIEEY
e et WENS LY, B SO AU
FHOL B0 38541007 WaTS {000} TL2-gshy kS0 Liu-Teuy
WE ARE AN CGUAL UPPORTUNITY B LOYLEL
Rewort Date: 3 Auy 1990
Lal Numbec: YH-LI6EQL
Vork Ovder §: 21-375
TEUD RONWING Accuunt &: 019159
RETEC
£13 VACOUYs 8T BIE 400
ST PAUL  MN 55101
Date Recwived: 17 Jul 1998
Vate Sawpled: 15 Jul 14958
Tewpervtuyre si Receipt: ON ICE
Project Dumed BNSE EQLA, YL Projact Huaber: 3-1908-400
FPA SW--84C Method B31U: Method Detection Limits Dute Extracted: 22 Jul 19934
dotermined wccording to A0CFR, Appendix B, Date fnclvsed: 30 Jul L9498
Part 133, 199z, ) Dilution Facior: 1

Swwple Leseription: HW-I2

YOLYNUCLEAR AROMATIC UYDROCARUONS RBesult Units RL

i~Methy! Naphthalohe < 0.040 ue/L 0.040
Z~plethyl Hapltholene < 0.03q vg/L 0,03
rceuwphibens 1,150 ug/L U.0ed
acenashihylene ¢ 0.B0C wg/L ° 0.600
Mithraceto < 0.029 up/L 0D.029
Benzala)snthrricene 0.150 ug /L 0.008
Benzo{u)pyroue < 0,061 we/L 0.081
Benzolb){ luoranthene < 0.062 ug/L D.062
Benzolghi jperyleuc ¢ 0.024 ug/L g.0e4d
Beazo (k) f luoranthrene ¢ 0,071 wg/L 0.071
Chryrens 0.190 ug/L 0.005
Bibenze(al;)anthracens € 0.023 ug/L 0.023
Fluoranthene 0.700  wg/L 0.010
Fluorene : - 0.570 ug/L 0.0M
Iudeno (1,2, 3-cd)pyrene < 0.046 ug/L 0.046
Naphthalene ¢ 0.038 ug/L 0.088
Phenanthrens < 0.032 ug/L 0-032
Pyrane ' 0.400 wg/lL 0.010

p~TERPHENYL {SURROCATE) RECOVERY: 126 X

Suuple wabcix interfered with ULV, detection but not Fluorescence detecbion.
Qusntificd uting Fluorescence detector only.

RL = Reportiag Liwiia

11 Jduts for thig report has been approved by HVIL Laborstory Muungevent.
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ﬁpff

PN DG, WP ZEOTSE-01042

R ORATORIES, Tac.

28 1.0, GoN 240, 1120 M. FRONT STREET

AN TRY G

CHORE (507) 358-8517 WATS (00} 7823557 FAX (LG7) oy -y
WE L% AN SQUAY, OFPFORTUNYSY Eoal LOY

TETO HONRING

DTt

113 WaCcDUTA ST STE ~00
ST PaUL  md 55101

Project Hawe: BRSF EOLA, 1L
EPa SU-H4E Methiod §020/5030 MODIFIED

Sumple Descriptian: dW-23
:.-.:::::.-::::::::::::::::ﬁ omoSTEroUsmSoEmToIioEsEs
Benzeoe

To l'm:ue

Ethyl Bepzeae

ylenes {Totel)

MA-TTT (SURROGATE) RECCVERY: 100 %

BYEX Suwple pH < 2

Report Date: 3 Aurg 1UGH

Lab Suwher: 89-LI0G43
Work Ovder #: 21-275
Account ¢ 015159

Dats Received: 17 Jul 1983
Date Sawpled: 1B Jul L1448
Temperatura st Receipt: ON ICE
Project Nuuwber: 3-1908-400
PVOC Analysis Date: 22 Jul 1956
PWoC Dilution Facior: 1

Result Units RL analyst
< 1.1 ppb 1.1 KE
< 1.0 ppb 1.0 KE
< 1.1 ppb 1.1 KE
€ 3.5 Epb 3.5 KE

RL = Reporting Liwits

{1 dunta for this report hus lreen approved by MVTL Luborutovy Maunsgewent.
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e UL JEL

e T W Lot W D B e P 74 : e e T
AT f:|‘._,,‘;,,r‘—._ k] .!-,“,|_ (JJ. kAT P
; JJWLLA{/UthuhmJ;h'ﬂ:tpy jJiLh AT

SO0, uoN 249, 1o FROMNT STRELT
. HEMW ULfn, N CS0T3-0248
PHOKE ST A54-0577 WATS (GOg] TH2-5057T FAS (50 3nd-Lesg

G S L0s A RQUAL OPPORYTUNITY EMWFLOYEs:
Repore Date: 3 Aug 19918

Lab duuber: 9B-L10L0643
Work Ordee #: 212735

TEOD RONPIWG Account ¥: 0191u4
nerec :

413 WwaCouTA BT 16 a0l

S PAUL MN G510
Dute Received: 17 Jul 1998
Date Sampled: 15 Jyd) 1998
Tremperntuce i Receiprt: ON ICE

Froject Nawe: OBNSY EOLA,LL Projuct NHuwber: 3-1908-200

EPA SW-816 Methiod §310: Method Deicetion Liwmits Date Cxtrweuvi:d! 22 Jul 19493
geterwined according to 400V, Appendix B, Date apalvied: 30 Jul 18994
rerc 136, 199z. ) ' Dilntien Factoe: 1

Sample Descriplbion: MW-23

FOLYRUCLEAN AROMATIC RYDROCAREONS Result WUaitis 148
i-Methyl Waphthalene € 0,030 ug/L {0,040
z-Methyl Wephthalene ¢ 0,034 ve/L u. 034
scanaphthene L.250  ug/L 0.041
Acenaphthyleue C UL600 uy/L 0.¢od
Anthrocene < 0.029 up/L U.029
Benzo{a)wnbthracens 0.660  ug/lL 0.003
Betnsolu) pyrene < 0.061 uy/L 0.061
Benzolh}ilucrantheae < U068 we/L G.0632
ansaiphi )peryleve ¢ 0.024 ue/L 0.024
Benta{l) flocvranthrene < 0.071 ug/L ¢.071
Chrysezne 0.120 ug/L v.003
Pibeuxo{sh)eathrecene < 0.023 vg/L 0.023
¥luorantheue ¢ 0,040 ug/L 0.040
Fluvrene 1.120  wy/L 0.071
Indenc(l,2;3-cd Jpyrens ¢ 0.046 ug/L U.046
Huphtbnlene ¢ 0.038 uysL u.03s
Phenayihrene ¢ 0,032 ue/L 0.032
Pyreng 0.440 \.15/‘1.; 0.010

P~ ERPHENYL (SUNROGATE) RECQVERY: 116-%

Sample wetrix interfered with U.V. detection but not Fluorescernce detection.
Quantiiied using Flucrescence detector only.

RL = QReporiing Liwits
\11 datn For this veport fms beon approved by MVIL Laboratory Menagement.
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P LON 248, 1126 N, FRONT STREET
HEAWY ULE, MN 560730249

y .: - b ‘JF; f'.' :. .‘;‘.f .
YT IS0 , AEL

JLirardbae Mde Lido

PHOEE (SUT) 388507 WATS (800) 707-5887T a0 (B07) ahh-riin

Wil a8 AN EQUAY. QPPOUINTINITY siba LV

TEDD NONNLNG

RELLC

113 ¥WaCOUTA 8f SIE allld
5T PAUL MW shlowl

Proeject KRawe: UNSF EDLA, IL
ERA SW-thiG Mevhod BUZ20/5030 MODLIFIED

Sample Description: HW-2d

ARALYTE

e e e B e o e ey e o A o et o ey L P ke e T e

Banzene
Tuleene

Echivl Benrzena
Xyleves {Totsl)

AAA-UTT (SURROGATE) RECOVERY: 101 %

DIEX Semple pH ¢ Z

Roport Dure: 3 aup 1548

Lal Nowhar: 98-L1¢bad
fovk Oedec 50 21-279
Account i 0191463

Date Received: 17 Jul 1998
Dete Sawpled: 15 Jul 1998
Teaperoture at Heceipt: ON JOE
Project fhuwmber: 3-1u03-400
PVOC Analysis Duate: 23 Jul 1388
PYOC Dilution Foctor: 1

Besult Unite RU Analyst
< 1.1 ppb 1.1 RE
< 1.0 ppb 1.0 KE
< 1.1 ppb 1.1 KE
¢ 3.5 ppb 1.9 KE

BL = Reporting Limius

All datea for this report Las been approved by HYTL Luborstory Mauageuant.
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TES LU 2t L e Lol T

? "“.L,,wz/w W% rjr___\\,, PR

3G, a0 2, 1TE L FHONT STREET
\lVV[JlnIIuPILLU 3-0449
PLHGHNE (D07) 92-0577 VAT 18000 7h-2ou7 00 i5u7) 8-t

Wi LIl AW EQUAY QFPOL 2 CINTSY Enfriyvisd
Report Dule: J Aug 15UH

Lab dumber: 9E-LYBGL4
Vork Order §: 21-2%5

TEDD LOHPING Account §: DID15S

EETEC

413 YaCoUTA St STE 400

ST Paldl, #il hu10l
Date Received: 17 Ju) 1998
Date Swmpled: 15 Jul 1998
Tewperature at Reveipt: oN ICE

Mroject NMame: DUSY QLA IL Project Nunber: 3-1908-400

EPA SW-046 Method #3310: Method Detection Lieits Pate Extroacitod: 22 9 1 1998
determined according to ¢0CFH, Appendiz B, bate analyassd: 30 Jul 185¢
Part 136,; 1u327. , Dilutica Factar: 1

Sanple Deseription: hil-21

EOLYNUCLMJ Al a1 H‘tUPOLAPLL ‘ Result Units )

- 1-Methyl N*phbuulcnu ¢ 0,040 ug/L G.040
2~Merhyl Waphthuleae < 0.034 ug/L U.03¢
Acenaplithens ¢ 0,021 ug/L 0.0a1
Acenaphthylee < 0.600 ue/L 0.600
Anthracene < 0.029 vg/L 0.029
Banzo{a)anthracens ¢ 0.008 uwg/L 0.008
Benzo{n)pyrene ¢ 0.061 ag/L 0.061

~ Bengo(b)flugranthene < 0.062 ug/! ¢.062
Benwo{ ghi )parylens _ ¢ 0.024 ug/ 0.024
Berzo (k) Fluoranthrons < 0.071 ug/L g.M
Chrysene ¢ 0.005 ug/L 0.005
Divenzxo{ash)unthrucene ¢ 0.023 wg/L 0.023
Fluoruuthene ¢ 0,040 up/L  .0.0%u
Fluoven: < U.071 ug/L  0.071
Indeno (L, 2,3-cd)nyeens ¢ 0.04G ug/lL 0-U45
Raphthalene ¢ 0.038 ux/L n.o3g
Phensnthrene ¢ 0.032 wg/L .03z
Pyrend U.0z0 ug/1L 0.010

p~TERPHENYL (SURROCATE} RECOVERY: 77 ¥

BL = Repocting Liwlis

ALl data For this report hae baea npproved by MVTL Laboratory Muanageant.
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Loy (5T BT oD SET T RS

‘“f”ﬁﬁﬂﬂdﬂW?7$i*WT9-:ﬂ;-'
N LR A d O E-S y i
g0, GOK 2ey, 1920 N, FRONT STREET
PGV Ule, RN SEQTS- (0249
PHOME (SU7) 354-8017F WATS (S00) TE2-3557 VALK (BUY) 58020680
WE a3 AN ZQU L OPPORTUNH'YEMPJ.‘-DYE#
Hepoet Date: 3 Aug 1948

Lab Numbec: $8-1.16629
Work Ovdav #: 21273
TEDD ROnNINC nccount F: 015149
RETEC
413 HACOUTA ST STE 400
51 Paul N 55101
Date Received: 17 Jul 19498
Dste Sampled: 15 Jul 1598

. Tewperature at Receipi: ON JCE
Project Name: DNET EOLA,IL Project Nuwber: 3-1808-700
FPA SW-BaE Methed BUZ20/5030 MODIFIED PVOC Auzalysis Dave: 23 Jul 1988

PVOC Dilution Factor: 1
Sample Ueeociption: MW-9

NALYTE . Result Unics KL analyst
fenzane ¢ 1.t  ppb 1.1 KE
Tolusne < 1.0 ppb 1.0 X%
;‘.UIYJ. BP‘_I\IEI}C: < 1;- 1 [-‘Pb 1.1 . hE
iylenss {Uatel) ¢« 3.5 gob 4.5 KE

AAATFY (SUBRROCATE) RECOVERY: 103 ¥

RL = Hepovting Liwnits

DITEX Sawple pil < 2

11 dats Yor this report has beeq spproved by HVIL Labovatory Manugewast.
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enma ) N TR RO T

g e g ot

"N .,'::_-!.‘ T 'f'::'_'-,--| -L,'? J :f\.'\ I :‘ £ -FI ' .":-‘ =y j.\ .
';.Lfi;L@yyﬁruu i/u{uu_ty, 2580

Lot PO, BOX 238, 1128 N FHONT STREET

edesioend WdEW UM, MN 56073-0719

PHORE {T07) 354-000 7 WAES (B00) T82-3557 FAR (E07] 359-2usu

Vew sl AN FGUAL OFPFORTUNTTY £3(PLO Vi
Hepoct Dute! 3 aug 1993

Lubti Humber: SH-LiSEa4
Work Ovder #: 21-2790
TEND L0100 Account #: D19149Y
wInrES
413 WACOUTA &7 518 400
= PAUL Rl S54101
Date Received: 17 Jul 1928
Date Samplsd: 145 Jul 1390

Temperature at fecaipt: ON
Project Beme: BRIV EOLA,IL Project Nuwber: 3-1508-400
Fps SH-B46 Method B310: Method Detection Liwits Date Extrucrea:r 22 Jul
detcruined according to 4DCFR, Appendin B, Date Analyzed: 30 Jul
Pur-t L3, 1997. . Pilution Factnoyr: 1

Se:le Degcription: HW-9

POLYNUCLEAR AROMATIC HYDROCARDONS Rasult Ualts QL

e e oA R A e ¢ e S T e B =R T = i 4 e A m M T LT T P

peblethy ] Hapichaleoue < 0.040 ug/L 0.040
2-mobliyd Naphthelene & ¢ 0.034 ug/L 0.04s
Acus~hthene < 00041 ug/L u.041
Acvnophthylene < 0.8600 us/L 0.6U0
Ant hracene < 0.029 wy/L 0.029
tenzof{e)unthracene < 0.008 uy/L 0.008
Benzo{n)pyrene ¢ 0,061 we/L 0.061
Benzol{b )y luorauthens ¢ 0.062 vg/L 0.062
benzolghi Jpecylenus < 0.024 wg/L 0.024
Bepco(l)flucranthirane € 0,071 ug/L £.071
Chrysene ¢ 0.005 uz/L 0.005
Dibenzo{sh)enthracene < 0,023 ug/L 0.Qu:
Flouoranthens < 0,040 ug/L 0.040
Fluorene < 0.071 wg/L n.071
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene < 0,046 vg/L 0.04¢
Haphthelene < 0.038 wg/L 0.033
Phenauthirane < 0.032 ug/L 0.032
Pyrene ¢ 0.010 ug/L 0.010

p~TURPHENYL (SURROGATE) RECOVERY: Y8 X

RL = Reporting Liwits

11 date for this report has been spproved by MVIL Laborntory Mungpfewent.
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PR P A N LAV

TR AT P
LSNED \Ufmrb I
P00, DOX 2e, 1120 N EFRONT STHEET
5o UL, BN 5007 3-0245
PO 1507) 540517 W2TS (8C0) 7U2-5557 VA {S07) 50800l
WE AR AN EQULT OPPORTUNTLY EMPLOY R

Report Date: 3 avg 1594

Lab Nuwber: 98-L16G46
Work Oudex &: 21-275
TEDD RONN TG Account #: 019154
EETEC
q13 dACODYA &1 STE 400
8Y PAUL R 55101
Date Reccived: L7 Jul 199B
Dute Sauwpled: 15 Jul 1354
Teuperature at Receipt: O¥ ICE

Project Nawe: BHSE YOLA, IL Project Nowbor: 3-1904-400
EPA SW-B46 Method BUZ20/3080 WODIFIED PYOC Analysie Date: 23 Jul 19493

PVOC Dilevion Factor: 1
Scuple Descriptiont MW=

ANALYTE o Result Unite RL Anplyst

B e T L e S e ZEzZsrs  HnDDI SEIosShn SSmronalai
Benzens 2.9 pub 1.1 KE

Mo luene < 1.0 pob 1.0 KE

Erhyl Benxene 5.9 Yub i1 KE

Iylenes {(Total) . 7.2 Phb 3.5 - RE-

AAn-TFL |SURRCCATE) RECOVERY: 101 %

BL = Reporbing Linits

RTEX Sample pH < 2

d dntz for thig report hLas beea spproved by MVTL Lobavetory Hunsgewent.
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| SRR S| LR AL A Vi

e S '~'l . Ty
.¥ :q,' N .
e Y ST S S ol S Ay B T e T v ¥ Faaiatt et : . -
UL Ui e T ORIES, e B
Wy .:;:_r’._-;‘,‘f"j Poon B0 b, V126 L PO STALEY
Ui s i MEW UL, i SEO73-0249
FHONE (S07] 354-0507 WaTS 1000) THZ-385) FLX DT 4552080
Wikl N EOUAL QP PORTUNITY ErPLOY K
Qeport Doever 3 Ang 1398
Lab Ruuwber: 96-L1EGAC
Work Ovaeyr & 31-2714
TEDD RONKNING Loccuunl : OLYL5H
e
513 MACOUTA ST sYE w09
S PAUL N £5101
Date Received: 17 dul 1998
Date Saapled: 15 Jul LY94YG
Teupevratucre wt Weczipe: ON 1CE
Project Hawe: BNSF EOLA, TL Project Nuwbecs 4-LO0&-100
EYA SW-8¢6 Method 83107 Metliod Detection Liwits Date Extracted: 22 Jul 1ubb
deterwined according to 4UCTFR, appendix B, Date annlysced: 30 Jul 1558
Yot 136, 1994, Dilucion Factor: 1
Suwple Description: #iW-1
FOLYNUCLE AR AROMATIC HVYDROCARBONG Result Units  EL
l-Meithy]l Huphthalene 41.20 uz/L v.010
C2=Methiyl Raphithalenc 12.40  wg/L 0. 034
teensphtheae 4,000 ug/L . 0.04al
heenaplithiylene < 0.600 uv/L 0.600
antihracone ¢ 0.029 ue/L U.0zy
beuzol{aYanthricene 0.050 ug/L £.000
denzolujpyrene ¢ 0.061 ug/L 0.061
Benzo(b)fluorunthene ¢ UW.062 uwg/L 0.062
Heuzo{ghl jpecylens < 0.0Z4 ug/L t.024
Benszolk) fluvranthiene ¢ 0.071 ug/L 0.071
Chrydens 0.080 RUTAR 0.00E
Dibenzo{uh)anthrocome < 0.023 ug/lL (.03
Fluoranthene ¢ 0.040 wp/L 0.0a0
Fluarane 2.700 ug/L 0.071
ndeno{l, 2, 3-cd)pyruie . < D046 ag/L 3.04§
Hupbihalete 6.900 ug/L 0.u38
Phetathreae B.100 g/l 0.032
Pyrene 0.800 ug/L 0.0l0

p-UEROHENYL (SURRUGATE} RECOVERY: 124 %

Bample matrix interf

erecd with U.V. detection but not Fluorescznce detaciion.
Quantificd using Fluorescence deteclor ouly.

RL = Repovting L

Twlts

11 dutw for this report ey DLeen spproved Ly MVCYL Laboratory Mutiwpoweut.
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T IO R I T E R 2750 JE LN RIS

Y - T 10 PR T 2 21 1) I T
LA ORIES, 12
10, 80X 723, 1126 N. FROMT STREET
WEW UL, mN 5073-0749
PHOKE (507) 3540517 WATS [B00) 7T82-3557 FAX (507) 3La-2050
(8 LRE AN BOUAL CrPORTUNLIC BhPLOYEE

faport Dute: I aug 1Yy

Lab tHuwbor: 98-L16G47Y
Hoek Drdezr §: 21-275
TEDD RONNINC fccount #: 019159
REYTEC
¢13 WACOUTA 31 S1E 400
ST PAUL  HN 65101
Date Received: 17 Jal 19958
Date Sauipled: 15 Jul 1998
Tewperasture at Heceivl: ON ICE

Project Wame: BNSY EOLA,IL Project Mugber: 3-1908-400 .
PA SH-B46 Method B020/5030 MODIFIED ©PVOC Avulysiz Date: ¢3 Jul 108

PYOC Dilution Factor: 1
Sauple Deseription: MW-14

ANALYTE . Result Units RL Analyel
e e T L EE L P S e s RSt WIzooo  SoosT SsTonsl 0 RESEESIIIC
benzene 1.3 ppb 1.1 KE

‘foluene 2.9 ppb 1.0 KE

Ethiyl Benzene q.1 ppb 1.1 i
Yyleaza (Total) ¢ 3.5 ypph 3.5 *E

ARA-TET [SURKOGATE) RECUVERY: 107 %

RL = Reporting Likits

BLEX Somple pi ¢ 2

11 dats [or this report bas been vpproved by HVIL Luboretury Munugewent.
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Jelbaddo et i o
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v . | . ) 1 g (SN
S e a ¥ f”:?"f“"s Yl T NN

A e Ty 8 PR Y Jr .
.;fﬁlld)gﬁrﬁﬂﬂiﬁuﬁ‘dutyy-‘:;L. VN e

A .0, 00K zay, 1126 N EROINT STIREET
P OHEW L, b G607 U2
O (07) 3540317 Wal'S (9001 7823687 FAX (ST 2L HiD

WE L AN BQUAL OPFPOITONITY SR PLOY N
Weport Duie: 3 s 19LH

Lab tNowbszr: 90-L1o0Ga7
York Oeder & 21-274
TEDU Ron:dels fccaunt §: U191LG
REVET
413 WnCOUra ST 8TE 4D0
ST DPaun M 25101
Date Received: Y7 Jul 1993
Date Swwplvad: 13 Jul 1996

Tewperature at Beceipe: W ICE
Yrogect W.ame: BNEP LOLA, IL Project Mowlner: 3-1908-400
EPA SW-E48 Merhod 2310 Metbod Dotection Limits Date Exccactad: 22 Jul 13938
deternined eccording to 40CF(R, Appandix B, Dato Aanalvzed: 30 Jul 194G
Yurl, 236, 1992, . Dilation Fectoe: 1

Snuple Uuscfiption: -1

POLYNUCLEAR AROMATIC HYDHOCARBORS Benult Units QL

\-Mathyl Wapnilalane ‘ 6,700 ug/l u.0de
z-Methy) Naphrhalee - : < 0.034 uz/L 0.0
acenapiivthene 2.200 ug/L 0.0u41
acencphihyleoe < 0.600 ug/l 0.6
inthrucene 0.240 wze /L 0.0z

Betizo(a)unthruceas 0.110  ugsL 4008
benzo(s)pyrens < 0.061 ve/l .06
Penzo{b)ylugranthsne < 0.062 wg/L U.06%
venzolghi)perylens ¢ 0.024 ug/L 0.0U24
denzo{k)fluovanthrene < 0.071 ug/L g.071
Chrysena < 0.005 ug/L 0.00%
Dibensolsh)wuthracene < 0.0¢3 uy/L 0.023
Fluoranthene 1.440  ug/L D.040
Flucrene 6.100 ug /L U.avl
Indeno (1,2, 3-cd) pyrene ¢ 0.U&6 wg/L 0.046
Naphthslene < 0,038 ug/L 0.038
Phesanthiren: < (.03% uwz/L 0.042

Pyrene 0.270  ug/fL 0.01U
p~TERMENYL {SURROUATE) QRCOVERY: 91 %

Sawple waleix iunterfered with UV, detection but not Fluorescence deteciiou.
Guantified vieinyg Fleorescence detecior only.

BL = Reporting Liwits
J1 deta for this repoct bus been spproved by WL Yaborstury Manidewent.
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P T [ ICTY R Al il e

— - ﬁLfLL.LQ:yﬂﬂjQEJ dﬁiﬂ“i&ﬂatlg,.iifd_.

F.0, LOX 263, 1126 W, FHONT STREEY
REW Db, MIN 550730243
PHUWE (507) 3540917 WATS (800) 7823047 FAX {507} 355w

WIT AS05 AN BQUAL GPPORTUNIDY EMPLOYE R
Report Date: 3 ang 19354

Labh Bumber: sg-116648
Work Oedoer #: 21-2%5

TEDU RORNING Account &1 015109
RETEC

454 WACOUTS 51 STE 400

8 PAUL WE O US101
Date Received: 17 Jul 1998
Date Sawmpled: 15 Jul 1098

Tewparature st Reczivt: Od
Project Name: BE9F LOLA,LL Project Nunlser: 3--1903-«00
EPA SW-D46 Mcthod BOZ(/5030 KODIFIED PvoC Aualysis Date: 2

PYOC Dilution Factov:
Semple Description: MW-1U

ANALYTE ) - Result Units RL
e S ettt S S S [EZTTET EEmmTD SIRnSIS
deniene < 1.1 ppb 1.1
Toluene < 1.0 puh 1.0
Lehy!l Bennens ¢ 1.1 ppb 1.1
- Iylenes {Tatalj ' ' ' ¢ 3.5 oph 5.5

AAA-TEY (SURROGATE) WECOVERY: 93 ¥

fL = Reporting Liwite

BTEX Sawple pH < @

J1 Jats tor tuis report hus been approved by HVIL Libovatory Hansgewent.
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MO, BOK 248,
MNEVY L, (A 5T073 U4l

126 N, ITRONY STAREET

POME (SUT) Juaeu51? WATS (BU0) YU2-555T TAR (S) 2 bt
Wi AL AW EQUAL OPPORTONILY BilPLOY £

Vrun LORNING
RETLEC
413 VACOUYA EY

51 lavih an

Vroject Nawe:

Prosv 136, 1493

Suuple Denmeiption:

FOLYNUCLiZAR AROMATIC HYDROUARBONS

-ty T R e § it i vy e b et e e
| uiirei=iii=ed iR PR SEEE SRS

I-Methy). Naplthalene
i-Hetnyl Rushthalenc
Acenaphthcne
acenanhthyleae
tnthracens
Benzo(a)snthreacene
Benrolu)pyrens
Lenga{b)fluorinchene
Benwolphi)perylena
Henzo (k) [luorantheene
Chr;‘,’EEt‘t&
Dibenzo{ah)unthreacene
Fluoranchene

Fluorery

fadeno{1,2, 3-cd)pyreus

Naphthalene
Phenanthrene
Pyrene

BNSF bOLa, YL
EA SVW-B46 Method B310:
deterwined uccocding to 40CFR, Appendin B,

Report Date: ¥ awng 19
Lab Nuwber; S0-L16848
Work Order #: 21-275
Accuunt #! 013159

S1TE 400
35161

Date Recelved:
Date Saupled:

Method Dzxtection Limits Date Extracted:

Dute Analyzed:

M- 10

ki

L7 Jul 1498
15 Jul 1938
Temperature at Receipt:
Project Nuwher: 3-1908-400

22 Jul 1y9d
30 Jal 1998

OH ICE

Biluvion Factor: )

Regult Uults R

¢ 0020 ug/slL 0. 040
¢ 0.03a ug/L 7 U.03a
< 0.041 uwg/L 0.041
< 0.600 ug/L 0.L0o
¢ 0,029 uz/L U.028
0.0686 ug/L 0.0ug
¢ 0,061 ug/L 0.081
¢ 0,062 ug/lL D.062
¢ 0.02¢ ug/L 0.024
¢ 0.071 ug/L 0.071
0.088 ux/L 0.00%.
¢ 0.023 ug/L  U.023
¢ 0,040 wg/L  0.0380
¢ 0.071 ug/L 0.071
¢ 0.046 ug/L 0.046
< 0,038 ue/L 0038
< D.U32 ug/L  0.032
0.077 ugfl 6,010

H-TERPUENYL (SURROGATE) REGOVERY: Bz &«

Anfa oy bR

rrepepd har heon rraved by W Teharzinvr ko

L =

veenment
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¥l [ RN o A

b l'* '}, HF :‘ ,aﬂ S I - . V. T
0 RN /\{J’J‘s: ;f} f“_ y, Sl B A
o ©.0.BUX 3ts,1110t4.rnLJhw‘erEET
CERN pow Ui, PN S607E-0249

FRONE (507) 354-BE17 WATS {800) 1823557 FA (L07) I59-2800)

W oAl AN EGUAY QPFPORTUNITY 2B OYEY:
Repoey Boget 3 Aup 134

Leb tuuber: $n-LiECaY
) Work Qurder o; 21i-275
TECD RONNYING Avcoant ¥ 019159
REYEC
413 WACQUTA 8T &TFE 400
s PAUL MN S§5101
Uste Received: 17 Jul 1958
Date Sawgled: 15 Jul 1994
Tewperature ut Receipe: ON ICE

Project Name: BNSTF EOLA, LT Pruject Rowber: 3-1908-400
Fra SH-846 Method £020/5030 MODIFIED FYOC Anelysis Duce: 24 Jul 1980

BVOC Dilucion Factor: 1
Sample Deecripiion: MH-C

ANALYTE ) . Resulit Units WL ~ Analyst
Bonsone ¢ 1.1 ppb 1.1 RE
Toluene _ ¢ 1.0 yph 1.0 Kk
Ethyl Benzens . . . . } . < 1.1 pph 1.1 KE -
Xyleres (Totel} < 3.5 ppb 4.8 XE

AAASTET (SURRCCATE) RECOVLRY: 95 x

RL = Reporting Liwits

BeEY Sample pl ¢ 2

1 Jdaty for this veport hus been upproved by HVIL Latoratory Hunwpeosni.
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1 -.._,'ﬁ..'_L N7 \'!.r JJ .i ..JL..-"_..,\%‘./} DLAPON N Vel Ul

'du 112674 lﬂunlr CTHEET

FHONE ';E.‘\l'.') 354--3:':' W WATS {B00) TE2-5587 FAXN (5U7F Shw-20m

bt i AN BOUAL CPPORLUNITY BMPLOYG
Report Date: J Aag 1YY

Lab Nawbovt Y8-LYI0649
flack Qrdey #: 21270

TEDD RORRIHC Account ¥: 019:5%

RETEL _

413 HaCOUTA 81 Srh oS00

S1opAUL M 8510
Date Heceived: 17 Jul 1538
Dare Sawpled: 15 Jel 1SH8
Tewperuture st Receipt: OW ICH

Project Nawe: BRUSE EoLA, TL Project Nawber: 3-1808-400

EPA SW-R46 pethod BI10: kethod Detection Liwits Date Extracted: 22 Jul 199G
detv:ruwined socovdivg to sUCKR, Apurndlx B, Date Analyzed: 30 Jul 1936
pari 1u6, 1992, . Uilution Facrorv: 1

Sapplu Uescripilon: AR

POLYHUCLEAR AROMATIC AYDROCARECHS lesult Units RL
o RN oo N s T el TR ISR ERSITRAETTER TEESSS === S miEz
- 1=Methvl Naphihalene - - ¢ 0.040 v/l Q.03
i~Meithyl Hophthulene ¢ 0,034 vwa/L 0.034
heenanhihene ¢ 0.041 ug/L 0.0a1
Acenaphihylenc < 0.500 ug/L 3. 600
Anthracenc ¢ 0.029 ug/t 0.024%
Benzolza)anthrncene "< 0,008 ug/lL 0.0c8
Benzola)pyrene < 0.081 uyg/L (). us1
Benzo (k) fluoranihene < 0.062 wg/L D.062
Beazo{yghi }perylene < 0,024 wg/L 0,024
Baazo(k) fluoyrantlcens < §0.071 ug/L ¢.071
Chryseus < 0.008 ug/L 0.008
Dibenzo{ah)anthracene < 0.023 w/L 0.0z
Fluovanthene < 0.040 ug/L 0.0q0.
Fluorenc ¢ 0.07L uwe/L 0.071
Indeno (1,2, 3~cd)pyrens < 0.046 ug/L 0.046
Naphthalene ¢ 0.038 ag/L 0.8
Phenanthrene < 0.032 ug/Y, 0.032
Pyrene < 0.000 uw2/L U.o10

p=TERPIENYT, (SURROCATE) KECOVERY: BO %

RL = Reporting Liwits

1 da*z ro- s report kas buun approve? by YT, Tabarsvory Honsauwen b,
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P TEL s

WL . ‘ T LRI SRt
h Nt N A TS " A R T A N Y fa L
vl-#of ALK oo Evay - N Sy
a -‘-Jml&g‘\:"ﬁu;( \‘Cv:h"é"&sjt_\)y dree
B PO B ZeT, 17126 WL FdT STREET
mEVS UL i, i 5607 3-0242 .
FHOME (SUT) 3548517 WATE (800) 7U2-345T Fak (S07) B08-2640
W SRE AN BQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMFLOYER
Report Date: 3 Auy 1558

Leb Nuwber: 98-LLLGYO
Work OQeder ¥: 21-275
TEDD RONNING Account £ 014159
HLETEC
413 Wacourid 4r sTE 400
Y paUL N 55101
Date Received: 17 Jel 1y9d
Date Sawpled: 15 Jul 1948
Tewperature at Receipt: DN ICE

Projeet Hawe: BNSF EOLA,TL Project Number: 3-1908-400

LA SW-B46 Method $020/5030 MODIFILD PVOC Analysis Date: 24 Jul 1998
PYQC Dilution Facter: L

Sample Deneription: #l-3

ANALYTE . . Rerull Unite RLU Anslyst

‘.::.'::'::::::.:.’::r:::::‘.:z:::_':‘.‘.::.:::‘::.‘:::::::::'::::".."'.'. oE=erE rudarpur i =t pusJonet o=t L ey

Benzene < 1.1 ppb 1.1 KL

Teluene < 1.0 upb 1.0 KE

Fthyl Berzens . < 1.1 ppb 1-1 KE

Xylenss {Torusl) | ¢35 ppb 0 3.5 KE

ARA-TET (SURNOCATE) GECOVERY: ¥y

RL = Heporting Limits

BYEY Sauple pH < 2

(1 data {or this report has been approved Ly HVTL Labocatory Honsgemeuti.
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oy o _,fb&ﬂ) JAL
‘;i-x g ” oD WK 2
I.,...-__'_._._ .—.—-_——-——.._.J lth. AR ) R¥TH P‘IN LEQ/3-0249

Vit TuY) aoe

Si LN st

Iil STy N
&/'h:_a“y; ji&(»
126 N, FRORT £70800

ESY WATS {U00) 702-9557 FAX 12071 ui- 2840

WE Ll AN FQUAL OFFORTUNITY ESdPLGYLER

TEDD ROMNIAC

UETEC

413 vaQOUTA 8T STE 400
SropabLl o mid 58001

Projent Name: BNSE WOLA,IL
FiFA 50-B46 Mechod §310:

Bavi 134G, 199%.

Seuple Descripticu: HWW-3

FOLY 'UL Ll’.ﬁ AROMAYYC QYDHOCARBONS

T Hmhyl u.n':the.le:‘
Z-Mzthy) hqp}lhulfng
roenaphthene
acensphthylene
Mthracens
Benzo{a)suntloacene
Renzola })pyrane
Bexuzo(b) ¥ luoranthen
peazolgnul)pevylene
Beuzo (i) Fluorwathvene
Chrysena '
Dibenro(ah)anthracens
Fluorantihehe

B T et et Tl b T ot

pri—Paiarpasieninp g i =

Fluarene
Indeno(1,2,3~cd)pyrens
daphthulenes
Phenanthraue

Pycane

poTERPIERYL (SUUROGATE] RECOVERY: 78 X .

KT et s s ot 1 3yl 0 S e B i b, o Dbl K VT b i Uit 0t ot it st il e vl
A P

scthod Detection Liwits
detevolned acconding to 4UCFR, aAppencix B,

Report Dute: 3 Aug LU
Lah Nuuber: 95-L16EED
Warlt Qpder #:1 21-27%
Account 3: wl9l5h9

Date Recaived: 17 Jul 1998
Date Sampled: 15 Jnl 1498

Tewperature nt Receipt: O YCE
Frojecr Rawber: F-1908-400

Date Exbtracted: 20 Jul 1938
Date Analyzed: 3U Jul 14941
Ditutiow Fectoe: 1

flesult Units HL

[y p—— [

¢ 0,020 ug/L V.04l
¢ 0,034 vg/L 0.034
¢ 0.091 ug/L 0.041
¢ 0.690 ug/L 0.60u
¢ D.02Y og/L 0.029
¢ 0.008 wg/L 0.604a
¢ 0,061 ug/L 0.u51
< 0.062 ug/L 0.062
< 0.024 ug/sL 0.u21
< 0.071 ug/L B.07L
< 0.005 ug/L 0.005
¢ 0.023 up/L  0.023
¢ 0,040 ug/L 0.040
< 0.071 ug/L u.071
< 0.046 ug/L 0.016
¢ 0,038 ug/t 0. 03y
¢ D.032 ug/L 0,03z
< 0.010 ug/L 0.010

Rl = Heporting Liamits

sppreved by MUTL Tabaratory ¥onazowoni.
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ST HEW Ul R SOUTE-G2ES ,
PIINE £aT) ST4-65TT WATS (E00) TH2-155T FAX (507 258-2490
Wil adti AN 2OUAL OPFORIUNTLY EalPY.OY e
fepore Date: 3 aug 1993

Lulb Nuwber: D8-L10E51
Work Order #: Z1-475

TEDD RONNING Aecowni £ 019159

RETEC

413 WACQUTn BT st aul

ST paul MK 55101
Date Recelved: 17 Jul 1993
Date Sewpled: 15 Jul 1338
Temperature st Heceipt: ON ICE

aject Wame: PRu¥ BEOLALL Project Nawber: 3-1908-q00
A S¥-H48 Mathod BOZUs5030 MCDYFIED PVOC Ahulyeis Date: 24 Jul 1598

PYOC Dilution Factor: 1
aple Descriptioa: hV-25

JALYTE ' . Rezult Units RL "~ Analyst
TeERITNEILT oo TN et LTt o AT e it P R fr g Ao —-=onw el -t ot mEEREstT D
“ngene < 1.1 yppb 1.1 KE

~aluene < 1.0 opob 1.0 K¢

thyl Revzeune ¢ 1.1 ppb 1.2 KE

ylenes {(Tocul) < 3.5 ppb €.8 . KE

AA-TEY (SURROGATE) REGOVERY: B =

RL = Repovting Liwits

BTEX Sample pH 2

" dstm Tor this report heu been upproved by KVIL Laboratory Managewant.
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whoos ot g EREENAN DL e AL L ‘ : FESTACE Y L s
'.'-"j.’ AN ;L‘Lh’j};"\--?‘bf 4! .1":5'"-“ . ;gh;_‘ " RO T TN L
umrLLLQJUEfﬁd‘LDUEU&LCDy A58 oL

Lip,0, 0N Zes, N1ZC 5 PRONT STREET
L WEW L, fand Bou73-uzad
AHONE (S07) 3545217 WATS (800} 7023557 FAX (S07) JT9-2550

W AXE AN ZOUSL OPFORTONITY 23(P10YER
ftepurt Bate: 3 Ay 19905

Laby Numbec: 98-L106651
Work Order #: 21-275
CEDD NOWNTRG Account #: 019139
REVEEGC
413 WACOUTA ST STE <0V
51T PAUL med 58101
Date Beceived: 37 Jul 1998
Date Sampled: 15 Jul 1994
Temperature at Receipt: ON ICE

Project Wame: HRSEY BOLA, TV ’ Projecy Nowber! 3-1308-400

EPA SW-B46 Method £310: Method Detectiom Limits Date Extracted: 22 Jul 1993
determined accordiug te FUCFR, Appendix I, Date Ansalyzed: 30 Jul 1988
Pait lue, 1932, . Dilution Fustor: |

Sewple Ueseriprion: Mi-25

FOLYHUCLEAR ARGMATIC WYDROCAKBONS Result Units [
==:::::‘.‘.::::‘.-'.:'.:..'-:'.::z::‘:.:::.‘.‘::::‘:::::::‘..‘:‘.":::::::: mnuzmozs e = gEo
1-Methyl Naphtlhalen < 0.040 up/L 0. 040
s=Merhyl Maplithaleue < 0.034 ugsL 0.034
Leensphtheue < 0.041 wg/L 0.041
Acenuphilylene < 0.600 wg/l.  U.600
anthracene < 0,029 ug/lL 0.029
Banzolc)anthraceus < [7.008 ug/L 0.008
Seno(a)pyreue ¢ 0.061 ug/L 0.061
fenro(b) i luorwntnene < 0.062 up/L n.06%
Senzo{ghi)pevylens € 0.024 vg/L 0,024
Benzo{k ) {luorantheene < 0071 ve/l 0.071
Cheysene ¢ 0.00% ag/L 0.005
Dibenzo (zb)uuthracene < D.023 uy/L 0.023
Fluoranthens < 0.040 ug/L 0.040
Fluorena < 0.071 ue/L Q.01
Indeno{1,2,3-cd)pycenc ¢ 0.046 ug/L 0.046
Haphthalenc < 0,038 ovg/L 0.038
Phenanthrene < 0.032 ug/L 0.032
- Pyretne < U010 ug/lL 0.0i0

p-TERVIITENYL (SURROGATE) RECOVERY: 84 2

RL = Reporting Liwits

11 deie Yoo vhis wapoes boo heer mperewved by MYTL Takorstery Monzgewscut.
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S CL oy i ; Y
| N AR "fta;, Free

h & 4} P.0.00X 2wy, 1125 N. FRONT STREET

E : ol T WEW LILK, iGN S6e0TI-uzAY

PHONE LS07) 354-65)7 WATS (00} 7823557 ©AK (507) 355 510

Wi AxE AN BQUAL CPPORTONIYY EXPY.OVLE
Bepurh bute: 3 Aug 1U¥E

Lab Nawber: 95-L15657
Hork Ovder #:¢ Y1279

TEOD RONNINC Account f: 019159

RETEC

413 WACOUTA 871 S1E 400

ST PAUL MN 585101
Date Recuived: 17 Jul 1340
Date Sawpled: 15 Jul 1948
Tewparature al Receipt: ON ICE

oject Nawe: BNSF EOLA IL Project Wewber: 3-1908-400
VA SH-846 Method 8020/5030 NODIFIED PYOC Analygis Date: 24 Jal 1348

PYOC Bilution Fuctor: |
aple Descripcion: YRIP BLANK

‘NALYTE ) < : Resuly Units &L sualyst

B e A e e e S e Lt e ZoERTE DREeE RERuololl DADnIaDsSSE
ienzene : < 1.1 ppb 1.1 KE
roluens <10 ppb 1.0 Ki:

Tthyl Beuzens < 1.z ppb 1.1 KL
tylenes (Tousl) ¢ 3.5 pupb 5.5 KE

124

AMA-TET (SURROGAVE] RECOVERY: gt

L = Veporting Liwits

BYEX Souple pH < 2
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE SIXTEENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as
beneficiary of Chicago Land Trust
Company Trust No 3291 dated

December 15, 1981 and Chicago Land Trust

Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated
December 15, 1981 '

SIRAL

Plaintiff,

No. 04 L 607 o =

v 25 B I

=22 g 2

THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND :;: :) ‘;:3

SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a 22 :ﬁ —

Delaware Corporation, z=7 o \
a/k/a BNSF Railway Company, < i
REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. =T = \|
a/k/a and n/k/a THE RETEC GROUP, INC A

a corporation. et.al.

Defendants.

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Ilinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December,15 1981 and Chicago
Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15, 1981, Joseph J.
Walczak, P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd, complaining of defendants, THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND
SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, a/k/a BNSF Railway Company,

REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. a/k/a and n/k/a THE RETEC GROUP, INC, a

Corporation, states as follows:

EXHIBIT

i p




COUNT I
NEGLIGENT INJURY TO PROPERTY
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago LLand Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago
Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney(s), Joseph Walczak P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.
complaining of Defendants, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY w/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware
corporation ("BURLINGTON"), BSNF Railway Company a Delaware corporation.

- 1. At all relevant times, INDIAN CREEK through its beneficial interest in of herein
above referenced Trust owned the real estate with property index numbers of:
PINS 15-13-376-001; 15-14-479-005, -006, -009, AND -010; 15-23-227-026 AND --028; 15-24-
101-004; 15-24-102-001, -008, -009 AND -010; AND 15-24-103-002 and 003
and said property is commonly known as 1500 Dearborn Ave., Aurora, [L.. 60505, hereinafter
referred to as the "Premises”).

2. At all times relevant to this complaint, BURLINGTON was and is a Delaware
corporation authorized to do business in Illinois since February 27, 1970, and is engaged in the
business of operating, maintaining and supervising railroad transportation on and over railroad
tracks and providing rail transportation services. REMEDIATION TECHNOLGIES, INC. a/k/a
and n/k/a THE RETEC GROUP ,INC. was a State of Minnesota Corporation was and sometime

thereafter remained based in the State of Minnesota as a registered a foreign Corporation and



was licensed to do business in the State of lllinois. THE RETEC GROUP, Inc. is believed to be
either a State of Delaware or Massachusetts corporation.

| 3. On or about January 20, 1993 and at all times relevant to this complaint and up until
the filing of this complaint and thereafter BURLINGTON owned, operated, maintained and
controlled the railroad tracks and real property located on the rail lines east of the City of Aurora
Illinois, near the community of Eola, Aurora, and, more specifically, including a portion of said
railroad tracks, five in number, lying contiguous, and located immediatety north of the real
property owned by Indian Creek stretching approximately 2,200 feet along said property line.
This section of railroad tracks and real property is hereinafter referred to as the "Contiguous
Railroad Tracks".

4. On or about January 20, 1993 and at all times relevant to this complaint,
VBURLINGTQN direpted, supervised, scheduled and controlled of the movement of trains, cars
and engines over and along its tracks, including the Contiguous Railroad Tracks. On or about
January 20, 1993, and upon information and belief, at all times relevant to this complaint,
pursuant to a Trackage Rights Agreement entered into by and between BURLINGTON and
SOUTHERN PACIFIC, used the railroad tracks, ihcluding the Contiguous Railroad Tracks to
operate and conduct its rail service business, including the movement of trains, cars and engines
over the Contiguous Railroad Tracks.

5. On or about January 20, 1993, without fault on the part of INDIAN CREEK, a train
owned, operated and/or controlled by BURLINGTON and traveling westbound over the
Contiguous Railroad Tracks, collided head-on with a train owned, operated and/or controlled by

SOUTHERN PACIFIC, which was traveling eastbound over the Contiguous Railroad Tracks.



6. At the time of the collision and at all relevant times to this complaint, the movement
of trains, cars and engines over, upon and along the railroad tracks, including the Contiguous
Railroad Tracks was subject to Burlington’s directions and control. The westbound
BURLINGTON train collided with the eastbound SOUTHERN PACIFIC train due in péu't to
errors on the part of certain BURLINGTON employees, including, its dispatcher, train engineer
and conductor, and due to their failure to use due care to avoid the accident. The westbound
BURLINGTON train collided with the eastbound SOUTHERN PACIFIC train due in part to
errors on the part of certain BURLINGTON employees, including, its dispatcher, train engineer
and conductor, and due to it's employees failure to use due care to avoid the accident.

7. On or about January 20, 1993, when the trains collided, three diesel fuel tanks with
combined fuel capacity of 10,800 gallons of fuel, ruptured, releasing approximately 5,800-6,800
gallons of diesel fuel onto a site (the "Site") located on the Contiguous Railroad Tracks, said site
being lbcatéd adjacent frém ;[he Prer.nises. As aresult of said spill the Defendants Burlington and
Southern Pacific entered into a Consent Order the State of Illinois in a case known Kane County
case No. CH KA 95 0527, See attached Exhibit “A”. The State Agency involved in the clean up
was the Illinots Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA™).

7A). At the time of the collision and presently, the Site was and is elevated above
INDIAN CREEK’s property lying to the South of the tracks and above an unknown owner’s
property lying North of the tracks. On the day of the accident, all of the diesel fuel flowed
downgradient in a Northerly direction, away from INDIAN CREEK’s property into a creek and
on the unknown owner’s property, which was downgradient to the rail road tracks.

7B). On the date of the accident there was no diesel fuel visible on Indian Creek’s

Premises, and the first time diesel fuel was visible on INDIAN CREEK’s Premises was after the



28" day of October 2000.

8. At no time prior to October 28, 2000 did INDIAN CREEK have any knowledge that
the

diesel fuel from the above-referenced spill had migrated onto its property nor did INDIAN
CREEK have any knowledge prior to said date that of the diesel fuel from the spill contaminated
its property.

9. At no time prior to October 28, 2000 did BURLINGTON or its agents inform or
disclose to INDIAN CREEK or the IEPA that any diesel fuel had been detected in or on, or
migrated to, or contaminated INDIAN CREEK ’s property.

10. Upon information and belief that the Defendant did not notify the IEPA of the
presence of diesel fuel on the INDIAN CREEK ’s property until some time in year 2002 or
thereafter.

11. BURLINGTON conducted testing in 1993 and thereafter installed and maintained a
recover;}, containment and monitoring system on BURLINGTON’s property not INDIAN
CREEK’s property to clean up the spill and prevent and ensure that the mugration of diesel fuel
and or contamination of neighboring soil and ground water did not occur off site to neighboring

properties, including INDIAN CREEK’s Premises, and in furtherance of said remediation efforts
BURLINGTON took the following actions:

a. From F ebruary 8 - 10, 1993, caused four soil borings to be installed and completed as
monitoring wells on each side of the track on BURLINGTON’s property. BURLINGTON -
installed four additional monitoring wells were installed downgradient of the area of the diesel
fuel spill on the spill site property controlled and maintained by BURLINGTON, not on INDIAN
CREEK property.

b. In approximately March, 1993, Burlington retained the services of Radjan Corporation

(“Radian”) , an Engineering firm, to characterize the subsurface extent of any diesel fuel



contamination of the site, and to implement, maintain, control and operate a diesel fuel recovery
system on the spill site property controlled and maintained by BURLINGTON, not on INDIAN

CREEK property. These included but were not limited to the following activities:

1. Soil and groundwater samples were obtained and analyzed for total petroleum
hydrocarbons (“TPF~"). The result from such sampling activity showed diesel fuel
contamination of the area soil and groundwater on the spill site property controlled
and maintained by BURLINGTON. Free diesel fuel was also observed in one of the
monitoring wells on the spill site property controlled and maintained by Burlington,

not on INDIAN CREEK Property.

ii.  Between April 2, 1993 and August 17, 1993, a groundwater interceptor trench with
a groundwater depression pump and scavenger pump was installed to remove free
diesel fuel from the groundwater on the spill cite property controlled and

maintained by BURLINGTON, not on INDIAN CREEK property.

The following was designed by BURLINGTON and to achieve this objective:

a. On approximately February 14, 1994, Burlington provided to IEPA. a
report titled, Phase I Emergency Fuel Containment (“Phase I Report™),
which outlined the activities and measures implemented by Burlington in
its initial response to contain, the 5,800 - 6,800 gallons of diesel fuel

spilled and released at the site. These included the following:

L. On January 20, 1993, absorbent material was placed in the creek

immediately north of the site where fuel was ponding on a property
site controlled and maintained by BURLINGTON, not on INDIAN

CREEK property.



The INDIAN CREEK PROPERTY is to the south of the property site spill

i1.

1ii.

v,

Shallow cut-oft trenches were dug on either side of the tracks in the
area of the spill and two (2) over and under dams were constructed
on the spill site property controlled and maintained by

BURLINGTON, not on INDIAN CREEK property.

Booms were deployed at the east end of the storm sewer and at the
west end of the storm sewer where such storm sewer discharges on
the spill site property controlled and maintained by BURLINGTON,
not on INDIAN CREEK property.

On May 30, 1993, a Wastewater Discharge Permit TWDP-029 was
issued by the Aurora Sanitary District (“‘Sanitary District”) for the
discharge of groundwater from Burlington’s remediation system to
the sanitary district sewer. 525,360 gallons of groundwater have
been pumped and discharged to the sanitary district sewer from the
spill site property controlled and maintained by BURLINGTON,
not on INDIAN CREEK property.

The Phase I Report provided for a Phase IT Follow-up Response,
which included among other things, the performance of a
supplemental site characterization and evaluation of remedjal
options for the spill site property controlled and maintained by

BURLINGTON, not INDIAN CREEK property.

b. Pursuant to the Consent Order herein referenced BURLINGTON was to at all

times maintain in good working order its diesel fuel containment, recovery and

monitoring system on the spill site property controlled and maintained by

BURLINGTON, not INDIAN Creek Property.



c. BURLINGTON pursuant to the Consent Order until the site, including the soil
and groundwater, and off-site areas are remediated to meet any and all IEPA approved
closure criteria established for this site, was to, and shall continue to monitor its diesel
fuel containment and recovery system and implement as appropriate, all measures
designed to prevent the diesel fuel spilled and released at its

site, from migrating off-site.

d. No later than sixty (60) days of entry of the Consent Order, Burlington was to
prepare and provide summarizes all fuel containment, recovery, remediation,
monitoring and maintenance activities conducted at the site since the January 20, 1993
diese] fuel release. Burlington was to document in said report all soil and groundwater
analyses conducted at the site from January 20, 1993 to the date of entry of this Consent
Order. Burlington was to include copiés of all a.nalyﬁcal results and all boﬁng logs

obtained during this period of time.

12. As a result of its ongoing obligations and duties stated herein above the Defendant

BURLINGTION employed as its agent Radian Corporation and then at some later date
Remediation Technologies, Inc. a/k/a and /k/a RETEC, ( THE RETEC GROUP, INC. and

hereinafter referred to as “RETEC”), to monitor and remediate said contamination on Site.

BURLINGTON had a duty to prevent the diesel fuel from contaminating and migrating unto and
under INDIAN CREEK s property. BURLINGTON had a further duty to use reasonable care in
the design, installation, operation, supervision and maintenance of the remediation system which
BURLINGTON so created, designed, installed, operated, supervised and maintained. At no time
did the above remediation plan and its incorporated Phase I, or II plans indicate the presence on

Diesel fuel on INDIAN CREEK’s property. All test wells and remediation measures referenced



in the Consent Order are on property owned, maintained and Controlled by BURLINGTON or
on the off-site Jocation referenced as to the North of the spill site property, which is not owned or

controlled by INDIAN CREEK.

On February 7, 1997, Defendant BURLINGTON caused its agent and RETEC to enter into a
licensing Agreement with the Plaintiff INDIAN CREEK, herein attached and referenced as
Exhibit “B” , for the specific purpose of monitoring the possible migration of the diesel fuel. At
no time did Remediation Technologies or BURLINGTON ever notify the Plaintiff INDIAN
CREEK or the IEPA that they had detected any diesel fuel on INDIAN CREEK ’s property, nor

that remediation was needed for the off-site property known as INDIAN CREEK.

At the time the above reference Exhibit “A” Consent Order and Exhibit “B” were entered
into by the Defendant Burlington no diesel fuel had been detected on the Plaintiff’s INDIAN
CREEK’s property.

13. From approximately October 28, 2000 to November 30, 2000, INDIAN CREEK
caused holes approximately five feet deep to be cut in the concrete of a building on the Premises
lying approximately within 100 feet from the Site to accommodate a tenant's machinery.

14. From approximately October 28, 2000 to November 30, 2000, a number of people
observed a liquid and smell consistent with diesel emanating from the excavations in the floor
building.

15. bn .November 30, 2002, in response to a request of INDIAN CREEK,
BURLINGTON's agent, Environmental Management Resources ("EMR") took soil samples

from the excavations in the floor of the building and tested by TestAmerica, which showed the

presence of diesel fuel in the excavations.



16. The diesel fuel in the excavations migrated from the Site to INDIAN CREEK's
Premises and injured and contaminated INDIAN CREEK.’s Premises.
17. At all relevant times, BURLINGTON, had an independent duty to refrain from

contaminating and injuring INDIAN CREEKS property and Premises.

18. In violation of this daty BURLINGTON, and based on it’s actions and conduct
stated hereinabove BURLINGTON, was negligent and guilty of the following acts and/or

omissions namely:

(a) carelessly and negligently operated, controlled, supervised and scheduled the

westbound BURLINGTON frain so as to prevent said train from collided with the eastbound

SOUTHERN PACIFIC train;

(b) carelessly and negligently caused or allowed the release of diesel fuel on the
ground in such a manner to create a water pollution hazard;

(c) carelessly and negligently caused or allowed the release of diesel fuel on

INDIAN CREEK'S property and Premises;

(d) carelessly and negligently failed to adequately, test, monitor, supervise,
clean-up, remediate the Site to prevent diesel fuel from migrating from the Site to INDIAN
CREEK'S property and Premises.

(e) carelessly and negligently caused, permitted and allowed diesel fuel to
migrate from the Site to INDIAN CREEK’S property and Premises.

(f) carelessly and negligently trained its employees and agents to prevent

engines and trains from moving on and over its railroad tracks, including the Contiguous

Railroad Tracks, from colliding.

10



(g). BURLINGTON failed in the hereinabove stated duty and breached said duty in
that BURLINGTON was and is negligent and guilty of the following acts and/or omissions,
~ which continue to the present day, namely:
(1). It designed a defective and inadequate remediation, containment and monitoring
system and work plan in that - they were insufficient and ineffective to remediate,
contain, monitor and recover the spill and prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling
to INDIAN CREEK s property, and its defective design allowed subst.antial diesel-fucl
to migrate and travel from the Site to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;
(2). Failing to properly implement its remediation, containment and monitoring system
and or work plan in a manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling
to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;
(3). Improperly maintaining and failing to properly maintain its remediation,
containment and monitoring system and or work plan by allowing the collection tank
system to become in disrepair, not operate properly, and cease to function, all ina
manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN CREEK’s
Premises;
(4). Improperly supervising and monitoring, and failing to properly supervise and
monitor, its remediation, collection and monitoring system and or work plan, and failure
to properly staff and inspect the collection and containment system in a manner that
would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;
(5). Improperty controlling and failing to properly control its remediation system and or

work plan in a manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to

INDIAN CREEK'’s Premises;

11



(6). Failing to provide, implement and conduct adequate testing and sampling of soil and
groundwater to detect, predict and prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to
INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

(7). Failing to increase the capacity of the fuel containment system, increase ground and
ground water sampling to adequately determine that the diesel fuel was migrating to
INDIAN CREEK’s Premises and to prevent such migration.

(8). Failing to modify and adjust the fuel containment system on a monthly and yearly
basis, and its work plan on a yearly basis to adequately detect, predict and prevent diesel
fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

(9). Failing to take and test samples quarterly from the monitoring wells installed on
INDIAN CREEK's property in accordance with the plan thereby aIlowing‘ diesel fuel to
migrate to INDIAN CREEK’S property.

th). Allowing the collection containment system to become inoperative, and not
functioning and removing the collection system and failure to replace and maintain a
collection system. Failing to provide for additional trenches to collect and remove diesel
product. Failing to adequately, regularly and frequently test the ground and ground water
at the Site to properly determine underground water flow rates and patterns to adequately

predict the flow of diesel from the Site to INDIAN CREEK’s property.

19. A license Agreement was entered into by INDIAN CREEK and the Defendant

BURLINGTON through its agents RETEC., see attached Exhibit “B”, a
true copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. Said Licensing Agreement was

entered mto at the request of the Defendant BURLINGTON. Pursuant to the Licensing

12



Agreement Defendant BURLINGTON created a duty and obligation to monitor the diesel

fuel on the Site and remediate any diesel fuel, if any, which may contaminate or migrate off-Site
to INDIAN CREEK s property said Defendant BURLINGTON failed to properly test said wells,
failed to report tests to INDIAN CREEK and failed to remediate diesel fuel which migrated to

INDIAN CREEK’s premises and property.

20. In addition to BURLINGTON negligent acts hereinabove stated BURLINGTON was

negligent and guilty of the following acts and/or omissions namely:

a. It designed a defective and inadequate remediation system and or plan.

b. It failed to properly implement its remediation system and or plan
c. It failed to properly maintain its remediation system and or plan
d. It failed to properly supervise its remediation system and or plan.

e. It failed to properly control its remediation system and or plan.

21. BURLINGTON’S actions, conduct and or omissions and failure to act are in the
nature of a continuing negligence in that BURLINGTON today continues to fail to do the
following:

a. bperating a defective and inadequate remediation systém and or plan.
b. Failing to properly implement its remediation system and or plan

c. Failing to properly maintain its remediation system and or plan

d. Failing to properly supervise its remediation system and or plan.

e. Failing to properly control its remediation system and or plan.

13



22. BURLINGTON's acts are of a continuing nature and INDIAN CREEK’S property
and premises are contaminated with diesel fuel, which continues to migrate and originate from

the Site as BURLINGTON has acted negligently as set forth hereinabove.

23. As a direct and proximate cause of BURLINGTON’s, acts and omissions, INDIAN
CREEK's Premises and property was injured, continues to be injured, stigmatized, substantially
damaged and the marketability, use, value and worth of INDIAN CREEK’S property was

substantially decreased and diminished.

24. That the continuing migration of the diesel fuel onto and through the Plaintiff’s
property and BURLINGTON’s failure to properly implement, operate and maintain its
remediation system and plan to stop said migration of diesel fuel to INDIAN CREEK’s property

and premises constitutes a continuing, expanding and growing injury to the premises and

property.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, request that this Court enter a judgment against the
defendants; jointly and several for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, or such other amounts
established by the proofs, enjoin Defendant, BURLINGTON, from permitting and allowing the

flow of diese] fuel and diesel contaminants from the Site and from the Defendant’s property onto

and under INDIAN CREEK ’s property and premises, order Defendant to remove the diesel

contamination from the Premises, and order any other relief which is equitable and just under

the circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.

14



COUNT 11

NEGLIGENT TRESPASS
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Hlinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago L.and Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago

Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney, Joseph J. Walczak, P.C. and the Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen,
Ltd., complaining of Defendants, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware
corporation ("BURLINGTON") a/k/a BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY states as follows:

1-24. INDIAN CREEK incorporates and realleges by reference paragraphs 1-24 of
Count I as paragraphs 1-24 of Count I1.

25. The Defendant’s careless and negligent acts and/or omissions as set forth in
paragraphs 18 through 21 and others set forth hereinbefore has caused a substantial quantity of
diese] fuel to be deposited upon and under the Premises, and to intrude upon, and contaminate
the Premises, and this intrusion and contamination upon the Premises is continuing in nature.

26. INDIAN CREEK has demanded that BURLINGTON remove the diesel fuel and
diesel contamination from the Premises. BURLINGTON, has refused and continues to refuse to
remove the diesel fuel and contamination from the Premises, and has not removed the diesel fuel
and diesel contamination from the Premises.

27. INDIAN CREEK has incurred substantial expenses in investigating the intrusion of

I5



diesel fuel on the Premises and will incur substantial fees and expenses in connection with the
clean up and remediation of the diesel fuel and diesel contamination on and under the Premises.

28. That the continued migration of the diesel fuel and diesel contamination onto, under
and through the Plaintiff’s, INDIAN CREEK, property and Premises constitutes a continuing and
expanding trespass.

29. As a result of the presence of the diesél fuel and diesel contamination on the
Premises, the Premises has been stigmatized and the marketability, use, value and worth of the
Premises has been substantially diminished and decreased, the Premises have been substantially
damaged, and INDIAN CREEK will incur substantial costs, expenses, fees and damages in

connection with the clean-up and remediation of the diesel and diesel contamination upon and

under the Premises.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, request that this Court enter a judgment against the
Defendants for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, or such other amounts established by the
proofs, enjoin Defendant from permitting and allowing the flow of diesel fuel and diesel
contaminants from the Site and from the Defendant’s property onto and under INDIAN

CREEK ’s property and premises and order any other relief which is equitable and just under the

circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.

COUNT I
CONTINUING NUISANCE
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership, and

INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of

16



Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago
Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney, Joseph J. Walczak, P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.,
complaining of defendant, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware
corporation ("BURLINGTON") a/k/a BNSF Railway Company:

1-29. INDIAN CREEK incorporates and realleges by reference paragraphs 1-29 of
Count [T as paragraphs 1-29 of Count IIL

30. The Defendants careless and negligent acts and/or omissions as set forth in
paragraphs 18 through 21 and others set forth hereinbefore has caused a substantial quantity of
diesel fuel to be deposited upon and under the Premises, and to intrude upon, and contaminate
the Premises, and this intrusion and the Defendants careless and negligent acts and omissions are

continuing and the contamination upon the Premises is continuing in nature.
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31. Upon Information and belief, the diesel fuel, which originated on the Site continues
to migrate onto and flow from the Site and from the Defendant’s property onto and under
property and Premises of INDIAN CREEK. The migration and flow of the diesel fuel has created
a nuisance.

32. The continued migration of the diesel fuel onto and through the Plaintiffs
property constitutes a nuisance. As a result of the above-described nuisance, the Premises has
been stigmatized and marketability, use, value and worth of the Premises has been
substantially diminished and decreased, the Premises has been substantially damaged, and
INDIAN CREEK will incur substantial costs, expenses, fees and damages in connection with the

clean-up and remediation of the diesel fuel and diesel contamination on and under the Premises.

WHEREFORE,_ Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEX, request that this Court enter a Jjudgment against the
defendants, jointly and several for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, or such other amounts
established by the proofs, enjoin Defendant from permitting and allowing the flow of diesel fuel
and diesel contaminants from the Site and from the Defendant’s property onto and under
INDIAN CREEK’s property and premises and order any other relief which is equitable and just

under the circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.
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COUNT IV
BREACH OF CONTRACT
LICENSING AGREEMENT
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON AND RETEC
(WRITTEN CONTRACT)

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY » an Illinois Partunership as beneficiary of
Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago

Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney, Joseph J. Walczak, P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.,
complaining of defendant, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware

corporation ("BURLINGTON") a/k/a BNSF Railway Company and RETEC states as follows:

1-24. Paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count [ are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count IV.

25 . That as result of the Defendant(s) BURLINGTON obligations arising in 2 Consent Order
known as Kane County case number CH KA 95-0527 the Defendants had the duty, responsibility
and obligation to properly and accurately monitor and remediate all contamination, including
but not limited, all contamination and diesel fuel moving, migrating and traveling from the Site

to the Premises, if any, as a result of its actions stated herein and as set forth in attached Exhibit
(‘A"J'

26. That as a result of the Consent Order entered in Kane County case number CH KA
950527 the Premises, was an off-site location arising from and contemplated by the Consent

Order, and thereby INDIAN CREEK and the Premises, and property were to benefit and be

protected by the Consent Order.
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26(A). That BURLINGTION has an independent duty to INDIAN CREEK to contain the
fuel spill, prevent the fuel from migrating to INDIAN CREEK’S property and Premises and to
remediate the diesel fue] and contamination from INDIAN CREEK’s property and Premises.

27. As aresult of its ongoing obligations the Defendant(s) employed as
its agents Radian Corporation and RETEC to monitor, remediate and contain said contamination.

28. That as a result of the Consent Order and its duties under law, BURLINGTON
negotiated the terms of the - License Agreement, and upon information and belief, directed

RETEC to enter into said Agreement by the Plaintiff and RETEC on behalf of and for the

benefit of BURLINGTION.

29. RETEC was the agent of BURLINGTON and BURLINGTON exercised substantial
- control of RETEC’s actions and conduct and BURLINGTON acted in the following manner:

a. BURLINGTON not RETEC contacted INDIAN CREEK to obtain a access
agreement.

b. BURLINGTON not RETEC negotiated the terms of the License Agreement.

c. BURLINGTON never represented that RETEC was an independent
contractor and- the License Agreement states the RETEC is the “contractor “
contractor” and Plaintiff believed RETEC was BURLINGTON’s Agent.

d. BURLINGTION represented that RETEC was its agent;

¢. RETEC was performing work for which BURLINGTON was required to
perform under the Consent Order and all the work was for the direct benefit
of BURLINGTON.

f.  Upon information and belief, BURLINGTON, not RETEC, determined
controlled the actions of RETEC in that it acted as follows:

1. Burlington negotiated the License Agreement
2. Burlington determined how many monitoring wells to implement.
3. Burlington directed how many samples would be taken and the

frequency of the samples.
4. Burlington directed whom, how and when to report the findings.
5. All data had to be first provided to Burlington prior to dissemination to

other parties.

30. The Defendant(s) BURLINGTION and its agents, Radian Corporation and RETEC failed
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to properly and accurately monitor the test wells and remediate the contamination.

31. BURLINGTION and its agents failed to regularly and properly and accurately monitor
test wells located on the Plaintiff’s Property and failed to notify and inform the Plaintiff® s of any
results of testing performed on said test wells.

32. A license Agreement was entered into by INDIAN CREEK and the Defendant
BURLINGTON through its agent RETEC.,, see attached Exhibit “B’;, a true
copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. Said License Agreement was
entered into at the request and with the authority of the Defendant BURLINGTON. Pursuant to
the License Agreement, Defendant BURLINGTON created a duty and obligation to notify
INDIAN CREEK of any diesel fuel and contamination found in the wells, to properly and
accurately monitor said wells, and to remediate said diesel fuel and contamination, as more fully
set forth in said License Agreement and sa1d Defendant Burhngton through its negll gent, willful
and intentional conduct and/or omission/failure to act breached said Licensing Agreement and its
responsibilities, duties and obligations under Licensing Agreement.

33. That the Defendant(s) Burlington has breached its duties and obligations under the
License Agreement as they have refused to complete the work as set forth in Exhibit “A”.

34. That the Defendant(s) Burlington and RETEC have breached its duties and obligations
under the License Agreement as they have refused to complete the work as set forth in Exhibit
“B”, have failed to conduct testing in accordanée with the License Agreement, have failed to
notify INDIAN CREEK of the results of said testing, have failed to remediate the diesel fuel and
contamination on INDIAN CREEK ’s Premises.

35. That the duties and obligations of Burlington set forth in Exhibit “A” have remained

substantially unfinished and therefore Defendant(s) Burlington failed to perform its obligations
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as set forth in the stated Consent Order and the duty of BURLINGTON created thereunder,

36. That the duties and obligations of Burlington as set forth in the Licensing Agreement,
Exhibit “B”, have remained substantially unfinished and therefore Defendant(s) Burlington failed
to perform its duties and obligations as set forth in the stated Licensing Agreement.

37. That at various times Defendant(s}) BURLINGTON employed Radian Corporation and
RETEC to act as their agent in fact to monitor and remediate and contain and monitor said
contamination caused by the diese] fuel spill. Said Agents acted on the behalf of Defendant(s)
BURLINGTON. Defendant(s) BURLINGTON, authorized RETEC to execute the Licensing
Agreement, as agent for BURLINGTON and it was the intent of the parties that BURLINGTON
and RETEC both had the responsibility, duty and obligation to perform all duties, obligations
and terms set forth in, and arising out of, the Licensing Agreement.

38. At all times relevant to the issues herein, the principal, Defendant Burlingfon
affirmatively, and fhrough its conduct as principal, represented to INDIAN CREEK that the
RETEC and Radian Corporation were authorized agents of BURLINGTON, acting on
Burlington’s behalf, with actual, real, and apparent authority to bind BURLIN GTON, as
principal to the acts of said agents.

39. INDIAN CREEK reasonably relied on the principal’s, Defendant(s) BURLIN GTON,
representations that said agents were , actual agents of BURLINGTON in that BURLINGTON
requested that INDIAN CREEK work with and cooperate with said agent(s) as said agents were
fulfilling the BURLINGTON’s obligations under the Consent Order, Exhibit” A”, and the
Licensing Agreement(s) and Access Agreement, Exhibit “B” requested by Defendant Burlington.
As aresult of BURLINGTON's actions, it is estopped from denying that Radian Corporation and

RETEC were its authorized agents and estopped from denying that they did not have the
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authority to bind BURLINGTION to the License Agreement, and by BURLINGTON’s aforesaid
acts and conduct, BURLINGTON is bound by the terms of the License Agreement as if
BURLINGTON had executed the License Agreement itself.

41. As a result the failure of BURLINGTON, and its agents, Radian Corporation and
RETEC.,, to comply with its responsibilities, duties and obligations under the Licensing
Agreement, diesel fuel and contamination has moved from the Site to the Premises, damaging
and injuring the Premises, and stigmatizing the Premises and damaging decreasing and
diminishing the marketability, use, value and worth the Premises, all to the damage and injury of

INDIAN CREEK in an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, request that this Court enter a judgment against the
defendants BNSF and RETEC, jointly and several for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, or -
such other amounts established by the proofs, enjoin Defendants from permitting and allowing
the flow of diesel fuel and diesel contaminants from the Site and from the Defendant’s property
onto and under INDIAN CREEK’s property and premises and order any other relief which is

equitable and just under the circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.

COUNT V
NEGLINGENT FAILURE TO DESIGN REMEDIATION SYSTEM
AND TO MAINTAIN REMEDIATION SYSTEM
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Ilinois Partnership, and
INDJAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illineis Partnership as beneficiary of

Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago
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Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney(s), Joseph Walczak P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.
complaining of Defendants, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware

corporation ("BURLINGTON"), BSNF Railway Company a Delaware corporation.

1-24. Paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count I are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count V.

25. The Defendants careless and negligent acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs
18 through 21 and others set forth hereinbefore has caused a substantial quantity of diesel fuel to
be deposited upon and under the Premises, and to intrude upon, and contaminate the Premisgs,
and thi§ intrusibn and contamination upon the Prémiseé ié continuing in nature.

26. BURLINGTON designed and installed a diesel fuel containment and recovery system on
the spill site property and along the property lying South of the Site to contain the spill, and
developed and implemented a phase II work plan to prevent the diesel fuel from spreading
further to the South and to prevent the diesel fuel from spreading to INDIAN CREEK s property.

27. BURLINGTON as a result of installing and operating said remediation system(s) and
implementing of a Phase II work plan to remediate the spill and prevent migration of diesel fuel
to off site property, - created a duty to use reasonable care to design, operate and maintain the
remediation system and the Phase II work plan, and to supervise, maintain, control and operate

its remediation system without injuring or harming others or their property.
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28. BURLINGTON failed in the hereinabove stated duty and breached said duty in that
BURLINGTON was and is negligent and guilty of the following acts and/or omissions, which
continue to the present day, namely:.

1. It designed a defective and inadequate remediation, containment and monitoring
system and work plan in that - they were insufficient and ineffective to remediate,
contain, monitor and recover the spill and prevent diesel fuel from migrating or
traveling to INDIAN CREEK ’s property, and its defective design allowed substantial
diesel fuel to migrate and travel from the Site to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;

2. F ailing to properly implement its remediation, containment and monitoring system
and or work plan in a manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or
traveling to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;

3. Improperly maintaining and faiiing to properly maintain its remediation, containment
and monitoring system and or work plan by allowing the collection tank system to
become in disrepair, not operate properly, and cease to function, all in a manner that
would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN CREEK s
Premises;

4. Improperly supervising and monitoring, and failing to properly supervise and
monitor, its remediation, collection and monitoring system and or work plan, and
failure to properly staff and inspect the collection and containment System in a

manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN

CREEK’s Premises;
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10.

Improperly controlling and failing to properly control its remediation system and or
work plan in a manner that would prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to
INDIAN CREEK’s Premises;

Failing to provide, implement and conduct adequate testing and sampling of soil and
groundwater to detect, predict and prevent diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to
INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

Failing to increase the capacity of the fuel containment system, increase ground and
ground water sampling to adequately determine that the diesel fuel was migrating to
INDIAN CREEK’s Premises and to prevent such migration.

Failing to modify and adjust the fuel containment system on a monthly and yearly
basis, and its work plan on a yearly basis to adequately detect, predict and prevent
diesel fuel from migrating or traveling to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

Failing to take and test samples quarterly from the monitoring wells installed on
INDIAN CREEK’s property in accordance with the plan thereby allowing diesel fuel
to migrate to INDIAN CREEK’s property.

Allowng the collection containment system to become inoperative, and not

functioning and removing the collection systern and failure to replace and maintain a
collection system. Failing to provide for additional trenches to collect and remove
diesel product. Failing to adequately, regularly and frequently test the ground and
ground water at the Site to properly determine underground water flow rates and

patterns to adequately predict the flow of diesel from the Site to INDIAN CREEK’s

property.
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29. BURLINGTON's acts and omissions stated hereinbefore are of a continuing nature and
INDIAN CREEK'’S property and Premises are contaminated with diesel fuel, which continues to
migrate and originate from the Site as BURLINGTON HAS ACTED negligently as set forth
hereinabove.

30. As a direct and proximate cause of BURLINGTON’s, acts and omissions, which are
continuing in nature, INDIAN CREEK's Premises and property was injured, continues to be
injured, stigmatized substantially damaged and marketability, use, value and worth of INDIAN
CREEK'’S property was substantially decreased and diminished.

31. As a result the failure of BURLINGTON, and its agents, to properly supervise,
maintain, control and operate its remediation system without injuring or harming others or their
property diesel fuel and contamination has moved from the Site to the Premises, damaging and
injuring the Premises, and stigmatizing the Premises and damaging decreasing and diminishing
the marketability, use, value and worth the Premises, all to the damage and injury of INDIAN

CREEK in an amount m excess of $8,000,000.00.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, request that this Court enter a judgment against the
]jefendant, jointly and several for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, or such other amounts
established by the proofs, enjoin Defendants from permitting and allowing the flow of diesel fuel
and diesel contaminants from the Site and from the Defendant’s property onto and under
INDIAN CREEK'’s property and premises and order any other relief which is equitable and just

under the circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.

27



COUNT VI
BREACH OF CONTRACT
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

(ORAL CONTRACT)

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY » an Illinois Partnership, and

INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY » an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago

Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney(s), Joseph Walczak P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.
complaining of Defendants, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware

corporation ("BURLINGTON"), BSNF Railway Company a Delaware corporation.

1-24. Paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count I are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count VI.

25. That as result of the Defendant(s) BURLINGTON obligations arising in a Consent Order
known as Kane County case number CH KA 95-0527 the Defendants had the duty, responsibility
and obligation to properly and accurately monitor and remediate all contamination, including
but not limited, all contamination and diesel fuel moving, migrating and traveling from the Site

to the Premises, if any, as a result of its actions stated herein and as set forth in attached Exhibit
“A'.H.

26. That BURLINGTION has an independent duty to INDIAN CREEK to contain the fuel
spill, preverit the fue] from miigrating to INDIAN CREEK s property and Premises and to

remediate the diesel fuel and contamination from INDIAN CREEK’s property and Premises.
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27. That as a result of BURLINGTON?’S obligations arising out of the Consent Order, in or
about June of 1996, BURLINGTON’S employee and agent contacted INDIAN CREEK’s
officer and agent and requested permission to place monitoring wells on INDIAN CREEK ’s
property. |

28. In or about June of 1996, four years after the initial spill, and up until no earlier than
October of year 2000, INDIAN CREEK had no knowledge that diesel fuel had migrated to its
property or the Premises.

29. Upon information and belief, in or about June of 1996, four years after the initial spill, and
up until October of year 2000, BURLINGTON had no knowledge that diesel fuel had migrated
to its property or the Premises.

30. The oral agreement and license agreement described below were not entered into because
INDIAN CREEK 2nd BURLINGTON had knowledge that the diesel fuel had migrated to, or
was likely to migrate to INDIAN CREEK’s property, but was entered into in furtherance of
BURLINGTION’s system to ensure that diesel fuel does not migrate to INDIAN CREEK ’s
Premises in the future.

31. In or about January 1997, BURLINGTION entered into an oral agreement with INDIAN
CREEK wherein BURLINGTION promised, covented and agreed to do the following;

A) Install five monitoring wells and sample the wells on INDIAN CREEK ’s property
along the railroad tracks immediately adjacent to the railroad tracks;

B) Regularly and continually, until notified otherwise by either of the parties to cease, test
and monttor the wells for diesel contamination in a proper, effective, accurate and diligent
manner, and in accordance with its obligations under the Consent Decree;

C) Timely provide INDIAN CREEK with any reports, studies, correspondence relating to
any diesel fuel discovered upon the Premises at any time;

D) In the event any diesel fuel contamination was discovered at any time in said
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monitoring wells or sampling or on the Premises, BURLINGTION agreed to remediate
and remove, at its sole cost and expense, the diesel fuel and any contamination or
environmental hazards on the Premises or any conditions which would be a violation of

any environmental laws.

32. In consideration of BURLINGTION’s aforesaid promises, covenants, and ﬁndertakings,
INDIAN CREEK promised to provide BURLINGTION and its agent and contractor access to
the Premises to conduct said monitoring and testing, and as additional consideration, INDIAN
CREEK entered into a License Agreement with BURLINGTION's agent and contractor,
REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a/k/a RETEC. A true and correct copy of said
License Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B.

33.  Without excuse, BURLINGTON failed to fulfill its promises, covenants and undertakings
under the oral agreement with INDIAN CREEK by:

A) Failing to regularly and continually test and monitor the wells for diesel
contamination in a proper, effective, accurate and diligent manner, and in
accordance with its obligations under the Consent Decree:

B) Failing to timely provide INDIAN CREEK with any reports, studies,
correspondence relating to any diesel fuel discovered upon the Premises;

C) Failing to remediate and remove, at its sole cost and expense, the diese! fuel found
on the Premises, and failing, at its sole cost and expense, to remediate and remove
any contamination or environmental hazards on the Premises and conditions, which
would be a violation of any environmental laws.

34. At no time did BURLINGTION or RETEC or any of their agents notify INDIAN
CREEK that diesel fuel had been found on or migrated to INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

35. The aforesaid failures by BURLINGTON of its promises, covenants and undertakings was
a breach of the oral contract between BURLINGTION and INDIAN CREEK.

36. As aresult of BURLINGTION’s aforesaid failures and breach of the contract, INDIAN
CREEK’s property and Premises was contaminated with diesel fuel and the diesel fuel

contamination spread over a significant area of INDIAN CREEK’s property and under buildings

on INDIAN CREEK s property.
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37. As aresult of BURLINGTON' s breach of the oral contract, INDIAN CREEK has been
damaged in the amount of cost to clean up, remediate and remove the diesel fuel in, under
and on INDIAN CREEK’s Premises.

38. As aresult of BURLINGTON’s breach of the oral contract, INDIAN CREEK has been
further damaged in that the Premises has been stigmatizing, decreased and diminished in value in
the amount of at least $8,000,000 and said damage and loss of valuc was foreseeable damage

arising out of BURLINGTION’s breach of the agreement.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, requests that this Court enter a judgment
against BURLINGTION for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, and for the costs of
remediation, or such other amounts established by the proofs, enjoin Defendants from permitting
. and allowing the flow of diesel fuel and diesel contaminants from the Site and from the
Defendant’s property onto and under INDIAN CREEK ’s property and premises, order the
defendant to clean-up, remediate, remove all of the diesel fuel under and on the Premises, and

order any other relief which is equitable and just under the circumstances as the Court deems

equitable and just.

COUNT VII
IN ALTERNATIVE
COUNT AGAINST RETEC

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, 2n Illinois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago

Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
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CREEK"), by its attorney(s), Joseph Walczak P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.

complaining of Defendant, REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. and THE RETEC

GROUP, INC, a Corporation, states as follows:

1-24. Paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count | are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count VII.

25 . That as result of the Defendant(s) BURLINGTON obligations arising in a Consent Order
known as Kane County case number CH KA 95-0527 the Defendants had the duty, responsibility
and obligation to properly and accurately monitor and remediate all contamination, including
but not limited, all contamination and diesel fuel moving, migrating and traveling from the Site

to the Premises, if any, as a result of its actions stated herein and as set forth in attached Exhibit
“A"ﬂ'

26, REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. a/k/a and n/k/a THE RETEC GROUP, INC, a -

Corporation (here in after “RETEC”) is and was doing business in Illinois at all relevant times to
the issues herein.

27. On or about February 12, 1997, RETEC executed the License Agreement attached hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit B.

28. Under the License Agreement, RETEC promised to conduct testing and monitoring of
wells on INDIAN CREEK’s property and promised to deliver all reports, studies and
correspondence to INDIAN CREEK as more fully set forth therein.

29. Under the License Agreement, RETEC agreed to remediate and diesel fuel and
contamination, and environmental hazards, which resulted from or arose out of the diesel spill

on the Site.

30. INDIAN CREEK provided consideration for the agreement buy entering into the
agreement, permitting the placement of wells on its property and permitting sampling of its
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soil and making the promises contained in the License Agreement.

31. RETEC breached the License Agreement by:
A) failing to adequately, regularly, and properly test the wells and soil;
B) failing to provide INDIAN CREEK with reports, studies, correspondence and
testing results of samples and wells;

C) failing to remediate and remove the diesel fuel and contamination on INDIAN
CREEK ’s property, which arose out of the diesel fuel spill at the Site.
32. Asaresult of RETEC’s aforesaid breaches, diesel fuel migrated from the Site and

contaminated INDIAN CREEK ’s Premises.
33. As aresult of RETEC’s aforesaid breaches, INDIAN CREEK has been damaged in the

amount of the cost to clean-up, remediate and remove the diesel fuel in, under and on INDIAN

CREEK’s Premises.
34. As aresult of RETEC’s aforesaid breaches, INDIAN CREEK has been further damaged in

that the Premises has been stigmatizing, decreased and diminished in value in the amount of at

least $8,000,000 and said damage and loss of value was foreseeable damage arising out of

RETEC’s breach of the agreement.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, requests that this Court enter a judgment
against REMEDIATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC. a/k/a and n/k/a THE RETEC GROUP, INC,
for an amount in excess of $8,000,000.00, and for the costs of remediation, or such other
amounts established by the proofs, order the defendant to clean-up, remediate, remove all of the
diesel fuel under and on the Premises, and order any other relief which is equitable and just under

the circumstances as the Court deems equitable and just.
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COUNT VIII
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
DEFENDANT BURLINGTON

Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Minois Partnership, and
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, an Illinois Partnership as beneficiary of
Chicago Land Trust Company Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 and Chicago
Land Trust Company as Trustee of Trust No 3291 dated December 15 1981 ("INDIAN
CREEK"), by its attorney, Joseph J. Walczak, P.C. and Law Office of Stuart A. Petersen, Ltd.,
complaining of defendant, THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILWAY n/k/a THE

| BURLINGTON NORTHERN AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware

corporation ("BURLINGTON"), (collectively sometimes referred to as “Defendants™) states as

follows:

IA‘Pa‘ragraphs 1 through 24 of Count I are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference

as paragraphs 1 through 24 of Count VIL.

25. The Plaintiff’s Premises Property will continue to suffer damage as a result of the source
Site, Burlington’s property, as the contamination and drainage gradient causes said diesel fuel to
continually to migrate onto the Plaintiff's property and will continue to do so in the future if the
current course of conduct is allowed. That there is no adequate remedy at law.

26. That Burlington has failed to perform as ordered under the Consent Order and under the
Consent Order and Licensing Agreement has failed to remediate the source Site of the diesel fuel
spill, which is located on Burlington’s property. The source Site must be remediated to prevent
further damage and injury to the Premises and the Defendant Burlington has failed, omitted and

refused to remediate said source Site of the diesel fuel.
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27. The damage and injury caused to the Premises and INDIAN CREEK by the Burlington’s
conduct and failure to act and continual contamination of the Premises by the Burlington’s diesel
fuel has and will continue to cause irreparable injury for which the Plaintiff has no adequate
remedy at law to prevent further and continual contamination of the Plaintiff's property by the

Burlington’s diesel fuel, and INDIAN CREEK is likely to prevail on the merits.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, INDIAN CREEK, requests that this ﬂonorable Court enter a Judgment
against the Defendant BURLINGTON and its agents and each of them be restrained, enjoined
and ordered to immediately cease, desist and stop from permitting and allowing any further
movement and migrations of diesel fuel from the Site onto and under the Premises, that
BURLINGTION be required to clean-up, remove and remediate the diesel fuel and

contamination on the Premises, and that the Court such enter other order or grant INDIAN

CREEK ahy-other relief which is equitable and just under the circumstances.
INDIAN CREEK DEVELOP NY

BY" Its Attorney
Law Office of Stuart A. Pe s Ltd. Joseph J. Walczak, P.C.

Attorney Stuart A. Petersen Attomey Joseph J. Walczak
601 N. Farnsworth Ave. 14045 S. 88" Avenue
AURORA, IL. 60505 Orland Park, IL. 60462
630-898-6612 708-349-6908
ARDC#620-5815 ARDC#06199796

ARDC#620-5815
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